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2020

7,498,150 39.45

9,129,125 48.03

20,636,317 108.58

19,005,343 100.00

( 2,031 )
2020 30 UFJ
106.87
30
2020
()

9,500 180,517.90 19.00 537,099.32 56.54 2.83
HOYA 5,200 473,250.77 91.01 478,633.20 92.04 2.53
4,500 471,285.85 104.73 442,288.27 98.29 2.33
6,100 298,052.78 48.86 410,320.74 67.27 2.17
NEC 10,200 343,772.95 33.70 396,345.15 38.86 2.09
11,400 279,133.14 24.49 350,975.79 30.79 1.85
12,600 287,031.19 22.78 326,911.28 25.95 1.72
900 288,424 .32 320.47 325,534.24 361.70 1.71
SMC 700 284,126.31 405.89 320,001.85 457.15 1.68
10 10,800 282,872.41 26.19 305,298.56 28.27 1.61
11 1,400 299,743.96 214.10 299,626.22 214.02 1.58
12 2,500 281,458.75 112.58 280,234.86 112.09 1.47
13 20,500 279,441.21 13.63 250,734.98 12.23 1.32
14 |SBI 26,300 499,422.79 18.99 223,773.66 8.51 1.18
15 10,500 234,975.79 22.38 220,409.44 20.99 1.16
16 22,000 190,190.57 8.65 219,821.68 9.99 1.16
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17 5,100 201,249.51 39.46 210,305.59 41.24 1.11
18 JMDC 4,200 191,460.89 45.59 205,323.64 48.89 1.08
19 6,400 282,883.44 44.20 203,308.46 31.77 1.07
20 4,800 191,579.01 39.91 201,741.11 42.03 1.06
21 6,700 187,390.31 27.97 200,649.56 29.95 1.06
22 11,100 188,193.85 16.95 178,429.49 16.07 0.94
23 JTOWER 4,800 181,927.16 37.90 171,737.44 35.78 0.90
24 20,500 187,462.18 9.14 168,112.93 8.20 0.88
25 14,900 277,758.92 18.64 133,727.19 8.97 0.70
26 32,600 489,921.42 15.03 114,357.28 3.51 0.60
27 8,500 275,609.71 32.42 104,359.79 12.28 0.55
28 6,900 81,037.05 11.74 69,201.57 10.03 0.36
29 |KOA 7,500 96,869.61 12.92 63,114.07 8.42 0.33
30 [AOl TYO Holdings 7,920 62,252.89 7.86 33,028.67 4.17 0.17
2020
2020
2016
2020
(
(2016 12 31 ) 27.370,271¢ 2,925,061 100,748,809 9,803¢
( 10,384¢
(2017 12 31 ) 28,676,802 3,064,690 204,285,382
)
)
(2018 12 31 ) 22.741,584¢ 2,430,393 208,192,923 9,022.954800
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« )
(2019 12 31 ) 21,609,500¢ | 2,309,407 140,538,694 9,064.826603
2019 20,760,945 2,218,722 174,132,230 8,224
20,712,435 2,213,538 164,812,720 8,230
20,671,389 2,209,151 164,706,462 8,225
20,916,026 2,235,296 154,093,324 8,272
20,860,442 2,229,355 155,614,906 8,514
10 21,320,174 2,278,487 145,508,826 8,778
11 21,417,942 2,288,936 144,852,039 8,791
12 21,084,054 ) | 2,349,532 140,538,694 9,064¢
2020 21,830,309 2,333,005 135,921,425 8,906
21,441,166 2,291,417 133,552,078 8,751
20,756,583 2,218,256 123,947,443 8,481
19,005,343 2,031,101 112,665,673 7,816

M7 5 AEMRERAS & U O S L WSS ONES 201698 155 S AECRAMME) - 202054 8%

o 202084 FRIME | 1 D47 FURA E157,816F  RIRAEER 12.665.67 37 ()
12,000 .
2% 2 BRI (o)
11.000 | = PS5 2ET AT R S (ol :
10,000 '
5,000 !
2,000 2
7,000 1
6,000 | , . | ¢
W0eE9E1IE 128% 2NFECR R 12B% 0 BE6RE 128% 2019E6E 1285 2020%48%
1y 7 O RRR R, SHOBET D RO R T
() St MMRELELLN DS [t 1 CHET R . il O CEHNC TR RL T LT TR, St
MG TRY 7 o BRLLBSIZ T3 TR | it e e e e g U
BRI ES R - g W ey SEEI- T | OIS R 1R MRS 514 S0 S = )

B TR CRpL a0l
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2016 ( ) 2016 12 31 1.07
2017 2017 12 31 4.95
2018 2018 12 31 13.11
2019 2019 12 31 0.47
100%
( 10,000
lIEa=laphiis:4
M= AE
(%)
10.0
i +4 555 _
= +O.4T%
50 -1.07%
-10.0
-15.0 “1311% -13.77%
e 0168 W17E ANBE 20105 20206
(201689818~ UITEIHIE~ (0EF1HIE~ QNIEIFIE~ (00EIHIE~

INGE1ZANE MTF1ZENE 20MEF12R31E0  WISFI1ZA3E  2020E45308)

20,178 9,994 10,184
2016 ( )
20,178 9,994 10,184
2016 12 31
10,787 1,302" 19,669
2017 10,787 « 19,669
2017 12 31 ’ 1,302 ’
6,291 3,035 22.925
2018 6,291 o 22.925
2018 12 31 ’ 3,035 ’
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1,250 8,914 15,261

2019 1,250 woxx 15,261
2019 12 31 ’ 8,914 ’
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2019 12 31
2019 12 31
66,546 7,112
3 22,265,784 2,379,544
20,900,606
4 198,000 21,160
16,949 1,811
22,547,279 2,409,628
3 699,012 74,703
583,193

3 104,189 11,135
1,917 205
44,832 4,791
20,292 2,169
4 3,886 415
6 30,596 3,270
6 1,555 166
29,500 3,153
2,000 214
937,779 100,220
21,609,500 2,309,407
1,523.6762 1,604.385 171
100.0000 1,603.990 171
1,322.2498 1,151.936 123

5,327.8652 148,105.608

2,996.0001 148,516.396

215,579,790 1.333724

198,755,538 1.202544

15,261 9,064.826603
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2019 12 31
69,460 351,622 37,578
4 0
77 8
351,703 37,586
1,134,419 121,235
6 361,553 38,639
153,454 16,400
42,585 4,551
24,055 2,571
125,163 13,376
24,097 2,575
1,865,326 199,347
(1,513,623) (161,761)

«c )

2,067,849 220,991
(785,742) (83,972)
675,115 72,150
(47,662) (5.094)
(2,924) (312)
1,906,636 203,762
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393,013 42,001
2019 12 31
(1,513,623) (161,761)
1,906,636 203,762
393,013 42,001
194,074 20,741
285,032 30,461
(1,964,203) (209,914)
(40,000) (4,275)
(1,525,097) (162,987)
22,741,584 2,430,393
21,609,500 2,309,407
2019 12 31

62/225



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

393,013 42,001
194,074 20,741
587,087 62,742

(42,363,278) (4,527,364)

38,433,401 4,107,378
37,332,116 3,989,683
(49,472,342) (5,287,109)
(2,067,849) (220,991)
(675,115) (72,150)
47,662 5.094
21,357,063 2,282,429
59,358 6,344
25,794 2,757
(1,186,653) (126,818)
396 42
(2,413) (258)
(16,500) (1,763)
(98) (10)
(174,965) (18,699)
1,883,664 201,307
274,979 29,387
(2,095,139) (223,908)
1,917 205
(1,818,243) (194,316)
1,125 120
66,546 7,112
410,980 43,921
209,696 22,410
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130,084 13,902
4 0
2019 12 31
2011 12 19
2012
2011 12 19
190
KY1-9005
FASB
ASC
GAAP usD Us$

GAAP

64/225



(

(

ASU 2013-08

)

)

2019 12 31

EDINETOO OO
00000000000000000000000000000000(E33968)
0000000000000000000

2013-08

FIFO

2019 12 31

2019 12 31

65/225



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ASC 740
50
50
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9
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ASC 820
):
22,265,784 22,265,784
):
699,012 699,012
):
(26,398) (26,398)
(77,791) (77,791)
(77,791) (26,398) (104,189)
2019 12 31
198,000 3,886
10
nine( ) 10
1,000
100,000
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oM
45
2019 12 31
1,550.9170 100.0000 1,322.2498 5,327.8652
(27.2428)
1,523.6762 100.0000 1,322.2498 5,327.8652
3,146.0001 211,956,098 293,755,538 22,925
15,325,470 1,250
(150.0000) (11,619,313)  (95,000,000) (8,907)
(82,465) @)
2,996.0001 215,579,790 198,755,538 15,261
:oa
1.5 12 b 1.9 12
c 12
d 2.5 12 e
12
361,553

2019 12 31 30,596
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20
25
2019 12 31
2019 12 31 1,555
ASC 815
ASC 815
0TC
CFD 2
CFD
CFD
CFD
CFD
2019 12 31
« ) « )

(49,409) 40,568 (8,841)
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1,747 62,116 63,863
(888,426) (888,426)
(47,662) (785,742) (833,404)
2019 12 31
21,469,405 136
4,112,450
2019 12 31
1,534.901 1,534.530 1,107.578 144,338.478
(131.565) (126.490) (100.898) (9,457.503)
201.048 195.950 145.256 13,224.633
1,604.384 1,603.990 1,151.936 148,105.608
4.53 4.53 4.00 2.61
4.53 4.53 4.00 2.61
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(8.54) (8.45) (9.04) (8.54)
(8.54) (8.45) (9.04) (8.54)
(6.87) (6.80) (7.37) (6.88)
144,738.819 1.305019 1.197840 9,022.954800
(11,236.237) (0.111658) 0.030459 144.498211
15,013.814 0.140363 (0.025755) (102.626408)
148,516.396 1.333724 1.202544 9,064.826603
2.61 2.20 0.39 0.46
2.61 2.20 0.39 0.46
(8.55) (8.98) 9.17) (11.66)
(8.55) (8.98) 9.17) (11.66)
(6.88) (7.32) (7.49) (9.81)
2018 FASB
ASU 2018-13 ( 820 ):
ASU 2018-13
ASU
2019 12 16
2019 12 31
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2018 FASB ASU 2018-03 ( 825-10
ASU 2018-03
ASU 2016-01
a
b
Cc
d
e
f
g
2016 ASU 2016-13 ( 326 )
GAAP
GAAP
2020 12 16
COVID-19
2019 12 31 236,968
2020
2019 12 31
899,573 4.16
481,747 2.23
12,373 0.06
538,825 2.49
2,576,703 11.92

947,234 4.38
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3,801,010 17.59
11,135,748 51.53
1,872,571 8.67
20,900,606 22,265,784 103.03
(264,504) (1.22)
(43,750) (0.20)
(376,341) (1.74)
(14,417) (0.07)
(583,193) (699,012) (3.23)
(77,791) (0.36)
(26,398) (0.12)
(104,189) (0.48)
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of assets and liabilities

As of December 31, 2019

Notes Uss
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 66,548
[nvestments in securities, at fair value (cost: US$20,900,6086) 3 22265 784
Amounts due from broker 4 198 000

Dividends receivable 16,948
Olher assels -

Total assets 22,547 279
Liabilities
Securities sold, not yet purchased, at fair value
(proceeds; US3583,193) 3 699,012
Denvalive contracls, al fair value 3 104,189
Subscriptions received in advance 1.917
Other payables and accrued expenses 44 832
Redemption payable 20,292
Amounts due to broker 4 3,886
Management fee payable & 30,595
Ferformance fee redemplion payable g 1,655
Professional fee payable 28,500
Administration fee payable 2,000
Total liabilities 937,779
Net assets 21,609,500
Net asset value (“NAV") per participating units
USD Class A based on 1,523.8762 units outstanding 1,604 385
USD Class B based on 100.0000 units cutstanding 1,603,990
LISD Class D based on 1,322.2498 unils outstanding 1,151,938
JPY Class A based on 5,327 8652 units outstanding 148,105.608
JPY Class B based on 2,596.0001 units outstanding 148,516,306
JPY Class C based on 215,579,790 units outstanding 1.333724
JPY Class D based on 198,755,538 units outstanding 1.202544
JPY Class E based on 15,261 units outstanding 906848266803

The accompanying accourniing policies and explanatory information form an infegral part of the financial
stafemanis.

741225



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooodad

Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of operations

For the year ended December 31, 2012

Notes uss
Investment income
Dividend, net of withholding taxes of US354 460 ab1 B2z
Interest income 4
Cther income 7T
Total investment income 351,703
Expenses
Stock Inan fees 1,134 419
Management fee G 361,553
Dividend expense 152,454
Professional fee 42 585
Administration fee 24,055
Interest expense 125163
Cther expense 24 097
Total expenses 1,865 326
Met investment expense {1,513,623)
Gain/(loss) on investments and foreign currency fransactions
MNet realised gain on investments in securities 2,067,849
Met realised loss on dervative transactions (785.742)
Met change in unrealised galn on investments in securities 675,115
Met change in unrealised loss on derivative transactions (47 .662)
Met loss on foreign currency transactions (2,924)
Met gain on investments and foreign cumency transactions 1,906,636
Net change in net agsets resulting from operations 193013

The accompanying accouriing policies and explanatory nformation form an integral part of the financial
statemeanis.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of changes in net assets

Far the year ended December 31, 2018

USSs

Operations
Met investment expensa (1.513.623
Met gain on investments and forgign curmrency transactions 1,906,636
MNet change in net assets resulting from operations 393,013
Unrealised appreciation on translation of assets and liabilities in foreign

CUurrencies
Forebgn currency translations 194,074
Capital transactions
Subscription of JPY units 285032
Redemption of JPY units (1,864, 203)
Redemption of USD units (40,000)
Net decrease in net assets resulting from capital transactions (1,525.087)
Met decrease in net assets for the year
Met assets at beginning of year 22,741,584
Met assets at end of year 21,608 500

The accompanying accourding poficies and explanatary informaltion form an infegral part of the financial
stafements.

761225



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooodad

Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended December 31, 2019

LUss
Cash flows from operating activities
Met change in net assets resulting from oparations 393,013
Adjustment far foreign currency translations 184,074

Met change in net assets resulting from cperations after adjustmeant for foreign currency
translations 987,087

Adjustments to reconcile net change In net assats resulting from operations to net cash
generated from operating activities:

Purchazes of investiments in securities (42 353 2T8)
Proceeads from sales from investments in securities 38 433 401
Proceeds from securities sold, not yet purchased 37,332,116
Purchase to cover securities sold, not vet purchased (48 472 342)
Met realised galn on (nvestiments in securities (2,067,844
Met change in unrealised loss on Investments in securities {675.115)

Change in aszetz and liabilities

Crerivative contracts, at fair value, net 47 882
Amounts due from broker 21,357,063
Dividends receivable 58 358
Cther agsets 25,7494
Amourts due to broker (1,188,853)
Parformance lea payable 396
Management fee payable [2.413)
Professicnal fee payable (16,500)
Administration fee payable (28)
Cther payables and accrued expenses (174,965)
Met cash flows generated from operating activities 1,883,664

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceads from subscription of units 274,979
Payments of redemption of units (2,095,139
Subacriptions received in advance 1,917
Met cash flows used in financing activities (1,818,243

Met change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,125

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 66,545

Supplemental disclosures of cash flows information

Dividands raceived 410,980
Dividends paid 209 856
Interest paid 130,084
Interest racaned 4

The accompanying accournting policies and expianatory information form an integral part of the financial
stafements.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2019

Corporate information

Shin-Ka Fund (the "Fund™) was incorporated as an exempted Trust in the Cayman Islands on
December 19, 2011 and cornmenced operations on February 1, 2012,

Efian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (formerly known as Ogier Trustees (Cayman) Limited) (the
"Trustee™), an exempl company with imited labilty company incorporated in Cayman, acls as
Trustee of the Fund. Pursuant to the Trust Deed dated December 19, 2011, the Trustee has
overall authority and responsibility for the management and administration of the Fund.

The Trustee has delegated the investment management responsibilities to Gordian Capital
Singapore Private Limited {the "Investment Manager”), a private limited company incorporated
in Singapore. The Investment Manager has appointed Danwin Capital Pariners, Inc. (the
"Investiment Adwvisor”), a company incorporated in Japan, to act as investment advisor in
respect of the Fund,

The Fund's principal investment objective is to deliver superior risk-adjusted absolute retums
with low comelation 1o market indices in Japan. Rather than seeking to outperform a
benchmark, the Fund seeks to implement & fundamental long and short positions primarily in
the equity securities of Japanese companies combined with an event driven strategy to achieve
superior absolule returms by capitalising on mispriced securities. The Fund may also invest
in debt securities, convertible bonds, futures and derivative instruments,

The registered office of the Fund is located at the office of Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited, 180
Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005%, Cayman |slands,

The Trustee appointed Portcullis Trust (Singapore) Ltd (the "Administrator) as the Fund's
Administrator.

The Trustee appointed Momura International plc as the Fund's prime broker and custodian.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements of the Fund are presented using accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") as detailed in
the Financial Accounting Standards Board's ('FASBE") Accounting Standards Codification
{"ASC™. The financial statemenls are stated in United States dollars (*USD" or “USS$").

Financial statements prepared in conformity with LI.S. GAAP require management to make
estimates and assumplions that affect the amounts and disclosures reporied in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Such eslimates and assumptions could change in
the future as more information becomes known, which could impact the amounts reported
and disclosed herein.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2019

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Assessment as investment entity

The Fund has been deemed to meet the definition of an investment entity per Accounting
Standards Update 2013-08 ("ASU 2013-087) as the Fund obtains funds from investors for
the purpose of providing the investors with professional investment management senvices
and to invest the funds salely forthe retumns from capital appreciation and investment income,
and does not oblain returns or benefits other than capital appreciation or investment income.
The Fund measures and evaluates the paformance of its investments on a fair value basis.
Management believes that the Fund is an investment enfity as its business is to deliver
superior risk-adjusted absolute retumns with low correlation to market indices in Japan.
These conclusions will be reassessed on an annual basis, if any of these criteria or
characteristics changes,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held with banks and short-term, which are non-
restricted and are subjected to an insignificant risk of changes in value. As at December 31,
2014, all cash and cash equivalents are held by a reputable bank.

Investment transactions and related investment income

Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. Realised gains or losses
from investment transactions are recorded on a first-in first-out ("FIFC") basis. Inlerest is
recorded on an accrual basis and dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date, net of any
applicable withholding taxes. Unrealised gains or losses are reflected in the statement of
operations.

Valuation of investmeanits

Listed securities are valued at their last traded price as al the close of the business day, if no
sales occurred on such date, at the closing "bid" price if owned and the closing "asked” price
if sold short. Securities for which market quotations are not readily available are valued
using estimated fair value as delermined by the Investment Manager. Realised and
unrealised gains or losses are reflected in the statement of operations.  As &t December 31,
2019, there is no invesiment that is fair valued by the Invesiment Manager.

The Fund records all derivative financial instruments activities at fair value. Fair values are
determined by using quoted market values where available. Othenwise fair value is based

on fair values provided by counterparties, market makers or pricing services. Had an active
exchange traded market existed for these derivative financial instruments, the fair value
could be significantly different.
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Shin-Ka Fund

MNotes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2019

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Foreign currency translation
(@) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in functional eurrency of the Fund
which is Japanese Yen ("JPY") and are recorded on initial recognition in the
functional currency at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.  Mon-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign cumency
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Mon-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary lems or on translating
monetary fems at the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss,

The Fund does not isolate the portion of gains or losses on investments which is due
to changes in foreign exchange rates from that which is due to changes in market
prices of the investments. Such fluctuations are included with the net realised and
unrealised gains or losses from investments.

(k) Fresenfation of financial statements

For presentation purpose, the assets and liabilities of the Fund are translated into
LISD at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporling period and their profit
or loss are translated at the exchanae rates prevailing at the date ofthe transactions.
The exchange differences ansing on the translation are recognised in other
comprehensive income,

Condensed schedule of investments

The industry and geographic classifications of the investments reflected in the accompanying
Condensed Schedule of Investments are based on the Investment Manager's belief as o the
most accurate descriptions as of December 31, 2019

Taxation

There is currently no taxation imposed on income or capital gains by the Government of the
Cayman Islands, The only taxes payable by the Fund are withholding taxes applicable o
certain investment income.,
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2019

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
28 Taxafion (cont'd)

ASC 740, Income Taxes defines how uncertain tax positions should be recognised,
measured, presented and disclosed in the financial statements and requires entities to
recognise a tax benefil from an uncerain tax position only if it s “more ikely than not” thal
the position is sustainable, based solely on its technical merits and considerations of the
relevant laxing authority’s widely understood administrative practices and precedents. If
this threshold is met, the Fund measures the tax benefit as the largest amount of the benefil
that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realised upon ultimate settlement.  The Fund
has evaluated tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the course of preparing the
Fund’s tax retums to determine whether the tax positions are more likely than not to be
sustained by the applicable tax authority, Based on this analysis, there was no material tax
position deemead to meet a more likely than not threshold,  Therefore, no tax expense
inciuding any interests and penalties was recorded in the current year.

29 Redemption payable

ASC 480, Distinguwishing Liabilities from Equify ("ASC 480"), requires that an entity classify
as liabilities any financial instruments in the form of shareholders' capital that are mandatorily
redeemable on fixed dates for fixed amounts. The liabilities to such shareholders are
presented on the statement of assets and liabilities as redemptions payable.

210  Fair value of financial instrumenis

The fair value of the Fund's assets and Rabilities which qualify as financial instruments under
FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ("ASC 8207) approximates the
camying amounts presented in the financial statements,

211  Offsefting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Fund does not offset financial assets and financial iabilities across derivative types on
the statement of assets and liabilities as there is no master netting agreement or similar
agreements. The Fund has presented the statement at gross amounts.

3 Fair value measurements

Investment transactions are recorded at estimated fair value as defined by ASC 820, The
fair value of an investment is the amount that would be received to sell the investments in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (i.e., the exit price).
ASC 820 establishes a hierarchal disclosure framework which prioritises and ranks the level
of markel price observability used in measuring investments al fair value. Market price
observability is impacted by a number of factors, including the type of investments and the
characteristics specific to the investments.  Investments with readily available active quoted
prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally will hawve
a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgement used in
measuring fair value.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2019

Fair value measurements (cont'd)

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC 820 and its applicability 1o the Fund's
investments are described below:

Level 1 - Quoted prices ane available in active markets for identical investments as at the end
of the reporting period.  The types of investments included in Level 1 include listed equities
and listed derivatives. As required by ASC 820, the Fund does not adjust the quoted price
for these investments, even in situations where the Fund holds a large position and a sale
could reasonably impact the quoted price,

Lavel 2 - Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either
directly or indirectly observable as of the end of the reporting period and fair value is
determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies.  Investments which
are generally included in this category inciude corporate bonds and loans, less liquid and
restricled equity securities and certain over-the-counter ("OTC") derivatives.

Lavel 3 - Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investments and include situations where
there is little, if any, market activity for the investments. The inputs into the determination
of fair value require significant management judgement or estimation.  Investmenis that are
included in this category generally include investments in privalely held companies, general
and limited partnership interest in corporate private equity and real estate funds, funds of
hedge funds and distressed debt.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy. Insuch cases, an investment's level within the fair value hierarchy is based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurements. The Fund's
assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurements in its
entirety requires a judgement and considers factors specific to the investments.

The following table summarises the valuation of the Fund's investiments by the abowve
ASC 820 fair value hierarchy levels as of December 31, 2019.

Fair value measurements at reporting pericd

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
uss Lss uUss LSS
Assets
Investment in sacurities, at fair value:
Common stock 22,265,784 - - 22,285,784
Liabilities
Securities sold, not yet purchasad, at
fair value:
Commen stock £00.012 - - 99,012
Demvative confracts, at fair value:
Forward currency contract - (26,358} - {26,308)
Future contracts (T7.791) = = (77,791)
(77,791) (26,398) - (104,188)

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Fund invested in Level 1 and Lewvel 2
investments. There has been no transfer between Levels 1 and 2 during the year,

= 12 =
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2019

Due from/(io) brokers

Due fromf(tc) broker includes margn deposils with the Fund's prime broker and amounts
receivable/payable for securities transactions that have not settled at the date of the financial
statements. The Fund continuously monitors the credit standing of each broker with whom it
conducts business with.  As at December 31, 2018, the due from broker and due 1o broker
balances of WS$198,000 and US$3, 886 respeclively, represents the receivable and payable
balances for securities transactions that have not been seitled. The due from broker also
includes cash and other currency balances amounting te US$30,638 placed with the Fund's
Prime Broker.

Units in issue

Units of the Fund may be issued in different classes. The Trustee has designated nine (2)
classes of units, being the USD Class A units, JPY Class A units, USD Class B units, JPY
Class B units, USD Class C units, JPY Class C units, USD Class D units, JPY Class D units,
JPY Class E and JPY Class F. The Trustee may designate further classes in the future
which may be offered on different terms and different currencies as the Trustee may
determine. All 8 classes participate in the profit or losses of the Fund and rank pari passu
for all purposes, excepl with respect o the different management and performance fae,

The units are initially issued at: (1) US$1,000 per unit for USD Class A, USD Class B, USD
Class C and USD Class D units; (2) JPY100,000 per unit for JPY Class A and JPY Class B
units; (3) JPY 1 per unit for JPY Class C, JPY Class D; and (4) JPY 10,000 per unit for JPY
Class E and JPY Class F unils. Additional units may be subscribed on the first business
day of each month during the year, or at such other time as determined by the Trustee at the
price equal to the NAV per unit of the respective class as of the last business day of the prior
month, subject to centain adjustments.

However, when units are subscribed for during a period when the NAV per unit is more than
the offering price al the beginning of the year or when there is a loss carry-forward from a
prior pariod, certain equalisation adjustments are made to the amount of money paid for the
subscription of units. This ensures:

(i) the performance fee paid fo the Investment Manager by the Fund is charged only o
those unils that have appréciated in value since their acquisition;

(i} all unitholders per class will have the same armount per unit at risk; and

{iiily all units per class will have the same NAV.

Any equalisation credit or performance fee redemption as defined in the Private Offering
Memorandum ("OM"), outstanding as at the end of the year will become payable io the
unitholders or the Manager, respeclively, The equalisation credit will be converted into
additional fully paid units at the end of the financial year while the peformance fee
redemptions will be redeemed from the unitholders at the end of the financial year,

All units are redeemable on the first business day of each month, upon 45 days prior written
notice, at the MAV per unit of the respective classes of the close of the business on the
preceding business day before the redemption date, after giving effect to certain adjustment
as described Iin the OM.
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Shin-Ka Fund
MNotes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Uil in issue (cant’d}
Participating unit transaclions for the year ended Decamber 31, 2019 wera a5 follows:

USD Clase & USD ClaseB USD Clags D JPY Clags & JPY Clase B JPY Clags & JPY Clase D JPY Clasg E

units units units units units units units units

Unis utzzanding at seginirg of

VB 18805180 1000038 1,322 2468 5,327 BESZ 394B0001 211856088 203,755 534 22025
Liniks ssuad 16325 470 1,250
Unks redeamad (2. 2428 = = = PaRaegny  CTTETE I3 ORE,000, 000 [£-R21
Mal eflect af unils equakzalan - - - - - (B2,&53) - 7
Uniks gutstsnding 5t and of wasr 1525672 D003 13222498 LEETHENE 2BOR0001 Z1LSTArel 193765053 145,261

G | Koo
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

Faor the year ended December 31, 2019

Management and performance fees

The Investment Manager will receive, out of the asseis of the Fund, a management fee equal
to: (a) 112 of 1.5% per month of the NaV of Class A and Class B units; (b) 1112 of 1.8%
per month of the NAVY of Class C units; (c) 1 12 of 2%per month of the NAV of Class D units;
{d} 1/12 of 2.5% per month of the NAV of Class E units and (&) 1/12 of 2% per month of the
MAaY of Class F units before deduction of the month’s management fee and before making
any deduction for any accrued performance fees as at the last valuation point in @ach manth.
The management fee for the year amounied to US$361,553, of which US3$30,596 was
payable to the Investment Manager as al December 31, 2018,

Pursuant 1o the OM, the Invesiment Manager is also entitled 1o receive a performance fee
equal to 20% of any increase in the NAY per unit with respect to Class A units and Class F
units and 25% of any increase inthe NAY per unit with respect to Class B, Class C, Class D
units and Class E units. The performance fee is calculaled on a high waler mark basis so
that any losses from prior periods must be recouped before a performance fee is eamed,
The perdormance fee is payable to the Investment Manager annually in arrears or upon
redemption of the units, There was no performance fee for the year ended December 31,
2019 but a performance fee redemption payable of US$1,555 as at December 31, 2018,

Derivative contracts

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into derivative contracts for trading
purposes. Typically, derivative contracts serve as components of the Fund's investment
strategies and are ulilised primanly o structure investments to economically match the
investment objectives of the Fund.

The Fund enters into transactions involving derivative financial instruments in connection
with its investing activities. These instruments are subject to various risks similar to non-
derivative instruments, including market, credit, liquidity and operational risks. The Fund
manages these risks on an aggregate basis along with the risks associated with its investing
aclivities as parl of its overall risk management policies, and as such does not distinguish
derivative profit or loss from any other category of investments for income presentation
purposes. The Fund records its trading-related derivative activities on a fair value basls, as
such these derivative instruments do not qualify for ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging.
Accordingly, even though the Fund's investments in derivative instruments may represent
economic hedges, they are considered to be non-hedge transaciions for purposes of
ASC 815 disclosures.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

Faor the year ended December 31, 2019

Derivative contracts (cont'd)

Forward confracts are OTC contracts for delayed delivery of currency in which the buyer
agrees to buy and the seller agrees to deliver a specified currency at a specified price on a
specified date. Because the terms of forward contracts are not standardised, they are not
traded on organised exchanges and generally can be terminated or closed-out only by the
agreement of both parlies to the contract.  During the year, the forward contract is closed,
realised gain or loss equal to the difference between the proceeds fram (or cost of) the close-
out of the contract and the original confract price. VWhen the forward contract is open,
changes in the value of the contract are recognised as unrealised gains or losses,

When the forward coniracl is closed, the Fund records a realised gain or loss equal to the
differences between the proceeds from (or cost of) the close-out of the contract and the
original contract price.

Futures contracts entersd into the Fund represent firm commitment to buy or sell the
underlying asset at a specified value and point in time based upon the agreed or contracted
quantity. Varation margins are made or receive by the Fund each day, depending on the
daily fluctuations in the value of the contract and the change s recorded as an unrealised
gain or loss. The ultimate gain or loss is egual to the difference between the value of the
contract at the onset and the value of the contract at setliement date and is included in the
statement of operations.

Confracts for difference ("CFD") represent agreements that obligate two parlies to exchange
cash flows at specified intervals based upon or cakculated by reference to changes in
specified prices or rates for a speciied amount of an underlying asset or otherwise deemed
notional amourt, The payment flows are usually netted against each other, with the
difference being paid by one party 1o the other. Therefore, amounts required for the future
safisfaction of the CFDs may be greater or less than the amount recorded. The ullimate gains
or losses depend upon the prices at which the underlying financial instrurments of the CFDs
are valued at the CFDs settlement date and is included in the statement of comprehensive
income. The Fund enters into CFDs as pan of its investment strategy to increase retums.

The Fund is subject to equity price risk in the normal course of pursuing its investment
objectives. The Fund may use forward contracts and futures contracts 1o gain exposure 1o,
or hedge against, changes in the value of equity securities.

Effects of derivative contracts in the statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2019

Unrealised Realised Total
Primary underlying risk gainfloss) gainfi{loss) loss
Uss uss Uss
Future contracts (49 408) 40,568 (8,841)
Forward currency contracts 1,747 62,116 63,863
Confract for difference - (B88,426) (388,4286)
(47,662) (785, 742) {833,404)
- 18 -
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2019

Derivative contracts (cont'd)

Volume of derivative activity

As at December 31, 2018, the volume of the Fund's derivative activities based on the notional
amounts and number of contracts when applicable, categorised by primary underlying risk, is
as follows:

Short exposure

Mumber of
Notional contracts/
amount quantity
uss
Equily price
= Index futures 21,460 405 138
- Forward currency contracts 4112450 -

Financial instruments with off-balance sheet and credit risk

In the nomal course of business, the Fund may trade various financial instruments and enter
into various investment aclivities with off-balance sheel risk. These financial instruments
include securities sold, not yet purchased and derivative contracts.

Dervative contrasts may result in off-balance sheet risk as the Fund's obligations under these
contracls may exceed the amounts recognised in the statement of assets and liahilities. The
Fund’s exposure to credit risk associated with counterparty non-performance on confracts, that
are not exchanoe traded, is typically limited 1o the carrying values on the statement of assets
and labilities.

Securities sold, not yet purchased represent obligations of the Fund to purchase the security
in the market at prevailing prices to the extent thal the Fund doeas not already have the
securiies in possession.  Accordingly, these transactions result in off-balance sheet risks as
the Fund's satisfaction of the obligations may exceed the amount recognised in the statement
of assels and liabilties.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial staterments

For the year ended Decamber 31, 2019

Financial highlights

Financial highlights for the year ended December 31, 20018 an: &5 folows:

UabClass A USDClassB USD Clazs ¥ JPY Class A JPY Class B JPY Class & JFY Class O JPY Class E
- 123 LIES JFY JPY JFT MY oY

Par unit cperativeg prefemanca:
Far

iniireg Al 1 534501 1 55 530 1107 578 144 355 AT 1<e TEE 1A 1.2an501a 1 19TE4D G052 AREE0G
Had iinvastemin] sparas (131 565) 128,480 1900 33 (AT ELE  (11,298.237) EURRRL ] Q0EHER 144 43521
Ht e o imvesimesnts and feeigr
FrRs s s 0 s LE=E 5.2 (BRr Lo 150384 R B WEETEE  (1h2AEHLg
=nding HNAY 1,504.384 1 03 BE0 1.461.336 148,105 608 128 516365 1.333724 1206044 E, DG4 925003
LY ) ‘h L L = & L
Toad malum bafors pafamans ' 4535 453 4.0 287 il 220 Q3 046
Farkrrmings les - - - = 5 1] =. g
I sl relum sher perormance = a5 a5 4.0 28T W 220 Lok ) A5
All Class & AllClass B AlChss O All Class & AllClass B AN Clazs C AllClass D Bll Class E
UED units US0 unlks UED uniis JPY units JPY s JFY undis JPY umnlts JFY imhs
Ralins to average nal ansets: = H *® % L] % L 5
Fotrarcaies Lk pailinmanch s (A4 [ 45 A B R 55) i ) A7 (11 RE;
P Errormeas s = =" = = 2 = i A
Tzl sxpenses ailer pa-fomarcs e LA 2 1] 1145} A &840 A o5 B AT (11.88;
M I ieshmant expense (BB [E.20) {7ET (EBE: iERE) 7 [7.43; fi-1.00

Finsnecisl highight= are celzulsted for each class of units taken as 3 whole with per uni operating performance disciosad for each clsss of und. Anindhadual
investor's rasults may vary from thase resuks basad on different perdormence fae arrangemant and an the fiming of captal irarsacton.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2019

Indemnification

The Fund enters inte contracts that contain a variety of indemnification provisions., The
Fund's maximum exposure under these arrangements, if any, is unknown. However, the
Fund has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of
loss to be remote.

New accounting developments

In August 2018, the FASE issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measuraments (Topic 820):
Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value
Measurement, to streamline disclosure requirements and reduce cost for preparers while
continuing to provide useful information for financial statement users, ASU 2018-13
eiminates disclosuras for fransfer between Level 1 and Level 2, policy of timing of fransfers,
valuation process for Level 3 fair value measurements and for non-public entities, the
changes in unrealised gains and losses included in earnings for recurring Level 2 fair value
measurements held at the end of the reporting period. The guidance also amends
disclosure requirements for the Level 3 roll forward, All other changes implemented by the
ASU are applicable to public companies only. The guidance is effective for financial
statements with fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, The Fund has chosen not
to early adopt this change in the Fund’s financial slatements and accompanying notes for
the year ended December 31, 2019. The Fund is currently evaluating the impact, if any,
that this update will have on its financial stalements.

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-03, Technical Corrections and Improvements
to Financial Instruments - Owerall {Subtopic 825-10); Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The amendments in ASU 2018-03 clarify cedtain
aspects of the guidance issued in ASU 2016-01 as described below:

{a) Equity Securities without a Readily Determinable Fair Value - Discontinuation;

{b}y Equity Securities without 8 Readily Determinable Fair Value - Adjustments;

{c) Forward Contracts and Purchased Oplions,

{d} Presentation Requirernents for Certain Fair Value Option Liabilities;

(e} Fair Value Cplion Lizbilities Denominated in a Foreign Currency;

{f) Transition Guidance for Equity Securities without a Readily Determinakble Fair Value; and
{g) Transition and Open Effective Date Information.

In June 2016, FASE issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326).
This guidance represents a significant change in the allowance for credil losses accounting
model by requiring immediate recognition of the Fund’s estimates of current expected credit
losses.
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Shin-Ka Fund

MNotes to financial statements

For the year ended Decamber 31, 2019

MNew accounting developments (cont'd)

The amendments affect entities holding financial assets and net investment in leases that
are not accounted for at fair value through net income.  The amendments affect loans, debt
securities, trade receivables, net investments in leases, off-balance-sheet credit exposures,
reinsurance receivables, and any other financial assets not exciuded from the scope that
have the contractual right to receive cash.  The amendments in this guidance affect an entity
to varying degrees depending on the credit quality of the assets held by the entity, their
duration, and how the entity applies current GAAP.  There is diversity in practice in applying
the incurred loss methodology, which means that before transition some entities may be

more aligned, under current GAAP, than others to the new measure of expected credit losses,

The guidance is effective for financial statements issued with fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2020. The Fund did not early adopt this and is currently evaluating the
impact of this guidances, if any on the Fund's financial statements disclosures.

Subsequent events

With the recent and rapid development of the COWVID-19 pandemic, the Investiment Manager
has assessed that the Fund has no liguidity issue and does not foresee any impact to the
Fund's performance beyond market movement up to the date the financial statements were

approved and authorised for issuance.

Subsequent fo the year ended December 31, 2019, there were USENIl subscriptions to and
US5236 268 redemptions from the Fund,

Subsequenl evenls have been evaluated through June 5, 2020, which is the date lhe
financial statements were available to be issued.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Condensed schedule of investments

As of December 31, 2019

Cost Fair value % of NAV
uss Uss L
Investment in securities
Common Stocks
Japan
Consumer Discrelionary 899 573 4.16
Communication Services 481,747 2.23
Consumer Staples 12,373 0.06
Energy 538,825 2.49
Financials 2,576,703 11.82
Health Care 947 234 4 38
Industrials 3,801,010 17.59
Information Technology 11,135 748 51.53
Materials 1,872,571 867
Total investment in securities 20,800 606 22,265 T84 103.03
Proceeds Fair value % of NAY
uss Uss e
Securities sold short, not yet purchased
Common Stocks
Japan
Communication Services (264 504) (1.22)
Industrials (43,750) {0200
Information Technology (376,341) {1.74)
Materials (14.417) {0.07)
Total securifies sold short, not yet purchased (583,193) (599,012) (3.23)
Derivative contracts -liabilities
Japan
Futures contracis (77.,781) (0.36)
Forward curmrency confracts (26,398) (0.12)
Total derivative contracts - liabilities (104,189) (D.48)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanafory information form an integral part of the financial
stafements.
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2018 12 31
2018 12 31
1,125 120
3 15,284,520 1,633,457
18,104,454
4 21,555,063 2,303,590
76,307 8,155
25,794 2,757
36,942,809 3,948,078
3 12,530,815 1,339,168
15,924,993
3 56,527 6,041
10,053 1,074
219,797 23,490
111,228 11,887
4 1,190,539 127,233
6 33,009 3,528
6 1,159 124
46,000 4,916
2,098 224
14,201,225 1,517,685
22,741,584 2,430,393
1,550.9170 1,534.901 164
100.0000 1,534.530 164
1,322.2498 1,107.578 118
5,327.8652 144,338.478
3,146.0001 144,738.817
211,956,098 1.305017
293,755,538 1.177840
22,925 9,022.954800
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2018 12 31
89,878 227,307 24,292
3 0
670 72
227,980 24,364
1,808,616 193,287
6 428,245 45,767
161,504 17,260
65,097 6,957
27,424 2,931
152,287 16,275
65,162 6,964
2,708,335 289,440
(2,480, 355) (265,076)
713,722 76,275
581,936 62,192
(1,874,791) (200, 359)
319,817 34,179
(148,370) (15,856)
(407, 686) (43,569)
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(2,888,041) (308, 645)
2018 12 31
(2,480, 355) (265,076)
(407, 686) (43,569)
(2.888,041) (308, 645)
745,829 79,707
535,512 57,230
(4,169, 685) (445,614)
(158,833) (16,974)
(3,793,006) (405, 359)
(5,935,218) (634,297)
28,676,802 3,064,690
22,741,584 2,430,393
2018 12 31
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(2,888,041) (308, 645)
745,829 79,707
(2,142,212) (228,938)
(55,886,088) (5,972,546)
60,299,304 6,444,187
98,673,318 10,545,217
(88,083, 639) (9,413,498)
(713,722) (76,275)
1,874,791 200,359
(319,817) (34,179)
(10,682,293) (1,141,617)
(45,156) (4,826)
(4,837) (517)
1,155,356 123,473
(358,342) (38,296)
(8,775) (938)
5,000 534
(586) (63)
39,062 4,175
3,801,364 406,252
522,706 55,862
(4,414,456) (471,773)
10,053 1,074
(3.881,697) (414,837)
(80, 333) (8,585)
81,458 8,705
1,125 120
182,151 19,466
101,464 10,843
148,376 15,857

17 2
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2018 12 31
2011 12 19
2012
2011 12 19
190
KY1-9007
FASB
ASC
GAAP usD Us$
GAAP

2013-08
ASU  2013-08
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2018 12 31
FIFO
2018 12 31
)
)
2018 12 31

ASC 740
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50
50
50
50
9
ASC 480 ASC 480
10
FASB ASC 820 ASC 820
11
ASC 820
ASC 820
ASC 820
ASC 820

0TC
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ASC 820
15,284,520 15,284,520
12,530,815 12,530,815
28,145 28,145
28,382 28,382
2018 12 31
21,555,063 1,190,539
21,227,377
10
nine( ) 10
1,000
100,000
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oM
45
2018 12 31
1,592.1417 100.0000 1,411.4830 6,880.6863
(41.2247) (89.2332) (1,552.8211)
1,550.9170 100.0000 1,322.2498 5,327.8652
3,663.1001 269,056,806 362,500,087 19,669
6,291
(517.1000) (57,100,708)  (68,744,549) (3,020)
(15)
3,146.0001 211,956,098 293,755,538 22,925
:oa
1.5 12 b 1.9 12
c 12
d 2.5 12 e
12
428,245
2018 12 31 33,009

20
25

100/225



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 12 31
2018 12 31 1,159
ASC 815
ASC 815
0TC
2018 12 31
« ) « ) « )
335,319 (264,474) 70,844
(15,502) 118,841 103,339
727,569 727,569

319,817 581,936 901,753
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2018 12 31
2,424,961 18
4,233,774
2018 12 31
1,655.024 1,654.618 1,200.253 159,290.392
(101.608) (103.664) (80.334) (11,775.635)
(18.515) (16.424) (12.341) (3,176.279)
1,534.901 1,534.530 1,107.578 144,338.478
(7.26) (7.26) @7.72) (9.39)
(7.26) (7.26) 7.72) (9.39)
(10.44) (10.45) (10.95) (10.43)
(10.44) (10.45) (10.95) (10.43)
(9.51) (9.51) (10.01) (9.53)
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159,682.538 1.445534 1.305970 10,383.989000
(13,082.591) (0.118805) (0.109627) (1,337.382855)
(1,861.130) (0.021712) (0.018503) (23.651345)
144,738.817 1.305017 1.177840 9,022.954800
(9.36) 9.72) (9.81) (13.11)
(9.36) (9.72) (9.81) (13.11)
(10.41) (10.79) (10.90) (14.71)
(10.41) (10.79) (10.90) (14.71)
(9.50) (9.90) (9.98) (13.76)
10
11
2018 FASB
ASU 2018-13 ( 820 ):
ASU 2018-13
ASU
2019 12 16
2018 12 31
2016 11 FASB
ASU 2016-18 ( 230 )- FASB
ASU 2016-18
2018 12
16 2019 12 16 ASU
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GAAP

GAAP
2020 12 16

12
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of assets and liabilities

As of December 31, 2018

MNotes Uss

Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 1.125
Investments in securities, at fair value {cost: US$18,104 454) 3 15,284 520
Amounts due from broker 4 21,555,063
Dividends receivable 78,307
Ciher assets 25794
Tolal assels 36,942 809
Liabilities
Securities sold, not yet purchased, at fair value

{proceeds: US$15, 924, 993) 3 12,530,815
Derivative contracts, at fair value 3 56,527
Subscriptions received in advance 10,063
Other payables and accrued expenses 219,747
Redemption payahble 111,228
Amounts due fo broker 4 1,190,539
Managemenl fee payable ] 33,009
FPerformance fee redemption payable G 1.15%
Professional fee payable 45,000
Administration fee payahle 2,085
Total liabilities 14,201,225
Met assets 22741 584
Met asset value (“NAV™) per participating units

USD Class A based on 1,550.9170 units autstanding 1,534.901

USD Class B based on 100.0000 units outstanding 1.534.530

UsSD Class D based on 1,322.2498 units outstanding 1,107.578

JPY Class A based on 5,327.8652 units outstanding 144 338,478

JPY Class B based on 3,148.0001 units outstanding 144 738817

JPY Class C based on 211,856,098 units outstanding 1,305017

JPY Class D based on 293,755 538 units outstanding 1177840

JPY Class E based on 22,925 units outsianding 9,022.954800

The accompanying accounting poficies and explanatory information form an infegral part of the financial
sftaternants.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of operations

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Notes Uss
Investment income
Dividend, net of withholding taxes of US£89,878 227,307
Interest income: 3
Other income 670
Total investment incomea 227,980
Expenses
Stock loan fees 1,808,616
Management fee & 428 245
Dividend expense 161,504
Professional fee 85,087
Administration fee 27424
Interest expense 152,287
Cther expense 65,162
Tolal expenses 2,708,338
Met investment expense (2,480, 355)
Loss on investments and foreign currency transactions
Met realised gain on investments in securities 713,722
Met realised gain on derivative transactions 381,936
Met change in unrealised loss on Investments in securities (1,874,751)
Met change in unrealised gain on dervative transactions 318,817
Met loss on foreign currency transactions (148,370)
Mel loss on investments and foreign currency transactions (407.686)
Met change in net assets resulting from operations (2.888,041)

The accompanying accouniing policies and explanatory infarmation form an infegral part of the fnancial
stafermens.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of changes in net assets

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Uss

Operations
Met investment expense {2,480,355)
Met loss on investments and foreign currency transachons (407 B8E)
Met change in net asseis resulting from operations (2,888.041)
Unrealised appraciation on translation of assets and liabilities in foreign

currencies
Foreign currency translations T45 828
Capital transactions
Subscription of JPY units 535,512
Redemption of JPY units (4 169 685)
Redemption of USD units (158,833)
Met decrease in net assets resulting from capital transactions (3,793,008)
Met decrease in net assets for the year (5,935.218)
Met assets at beginning of year 28,678,802
Met assets at end of year 22,741 584

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatony information form an integral part of the financial
statements.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended December 31, 2018

3E
Cash flows from operating activities
Met change in net assefs resulting from operations 12,588 041)
Adjustment for foreign currency ranslaticns 745,828

Met change in net assets resulting from operations after adjustment for foreign cumency
franslations (2,142 212)

Ad|ustments o reconclle net change in net assats resulting from cperations to net cash
generated from operating activities:

Furchases of investments in securities {55,686 088)
Procesds from sales from investments in securities 60,299, 304
Proceeds from securitles sald, not yet purchased 98 673 318
Furchase fo cover securites sold, nat vet purchased (88,083 634)
Met realised gain on investments in securities {713,722}
Met change in unrealised [Dss on invesiments in securities 1,874,791

Change in assets and liabilifies

Denvative contracts, at fair value, net (F19.817)
Amounis due from broker {10,682 293)
Dividends receivable [45,158)
Other assets (4,837)
Amounts due to broker 1,155,358
Ferformance fee payable (358,342)
Management fee payable (B,773)
Professional fee payable 5,000
Administration fee payable (588)
Cther pavables and accrued expenses 39,082
Met cash flows generated from operating activities 3,801,384

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from subscrplicn of units 022,706
Payments of redemption of units (£,414 458)
Subscriptions recaived in advance 10,053
Met cash flows used in financing activities {3,881, 697)
Met change in cash and cash equiralents (B0, 333)
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year B1,458
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,125

Supplemental disclosures of cash flows information

Dividends receved 182,151
Dividends paid 101 454
Interast paid 148 376
Interest received 17

The accompanying accouniing policies and explanatary informadion form an infegral part of the financial
staternants.

s
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Corporate information

Shin-Ka Fund (the "Fund") was incorporated as an exempted Trust in the Cayman Islands on
December 19, 2011 and commenced operations on February 1, 2012,

Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (formerly known as Ogler Trustees (Cayman) Limited) (the
"Trustee”), an exempt company with limited liability company incorporated in Cayman, acts as
Trustee of the Fund. Pursuant to the Trust Deed dated December 1%, 2011, the Trustee has
overall authorty and responsibility for the management and administration of the Fund,

The Truslee has delegated the invesiment management responsibilities to Gordian Capital
Singapore Private Limited (the "Investment Manager™), a private limited company incorporated
in Singapore. The Investment Manager has appointed Darwin Capital Parners, Inc. {the
“Investrment Advisor”), a company incorporated in Japan, to act as investment advisor in
respeci of the Fund.

The Fund's principal investment objective is to deliver superior risk-adjusted absolute retums
with low correlation to market indices in Japan Rather than seeking to outperform a
benchmark, the Fund seeks to implement a fundamental long and short positions primarily in
the equity securities of Japanese companies combined with an evenl driven strategy Lo achieve
supenor absolute returns by capitalising on mispriced securnties. The Fund may also investin
debt securties, convertible bonds, fulures and dervative instruments.

The registered office of the Fund is located at the office of Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limiled, 190
Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-8007, Cayman Islands.

The Trustee appointed Portcullis Trust (Singapore) Lid (the "Administrator”) as the Fund's
Administrator.

The Trustee appointed Nomura Intemational plc as the Fund's prime broker and custodian,

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements of the Fund are presenied using accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") as delailed in
the Financial Accounting Standards Board's ("FASB) Accounting Standards Codification
{"ASC"). The financial statements are stated in United States dollars ("USD" or "USS").

Financial staternents prepared in conformity with U.S. SAAP require management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts and disclosures reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes, Such estimates and assumptions could change inthe
future as more infarmation becomeas known, which could impact the amounts reported and
disclosed herein.

109/225



2.3

2.4

25

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO000DO000DO00D00oDOo00b0Oo00noOodn(eE33968)
Oooooooooooooooooodad

Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Assessment as investment entity

The Fund has been deemed to meet the definition of an investment entity per Accounting
Standards Update 2013-08 ("ASU 2013-08%) as the Fund obtains funds from investors for
the purpose of providing the investors with professional investment management services
and to invest the funds salely for the returns from capital appreciation and investment income,
and does not obtain returns or benefits other than capital appreciation or investment income,
The Fund measures and evaluates the perfarmance of its investmeants on a fair valus basis.
Management believes that the Fund is an investment entity as ils business is to deliver
superior nsk-adjusted absolute retums with low comelation to market indices in Japan. These
conclusions will be reassessed on an annual basis, if any of these cnteria or charactenstics
changes.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash aguivalents comprise cash held with banks and shori-term, highly liguid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subjected to an
insignificant nisk of changes in value. As al Decamber 31, 2018, all cash and cash
equivalents are held by a reputable bank.

Investment transactions and related investment income

Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. Realised gains or losses
from investment transactions are recorded on a first-in first-out CFIFO% basis. Interest is
recorded on an accrual basis and dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date, net of any
applicable withholding taxes. Unrealised gains or losses are reflected in the statement of
operalions.

Valuation of investments

Listed securities are valued at their last traded price as at the close of the business day, if no
sales occurred on such date, at the closing “bid”® price if owned and the closing “asked” price
if sold short, Securities for which market guotations are not readily available are valued using
estimaled fair value as determined by the Investment Manager. Realised and unrealised
gains or losses are reflected in the statement of operations. As at Decemnber 31, 2018, there
is no investment that is fair valued by the Investment Manager.

The Fund records all dervative financial instruments activities at fair value. Fair values are
determined by using quoted market values where available, Otherwise fair value is based
on fair values provided by counterparties, market makers or pricing services. Had an adtive
exchange traded market existed for these dervative financial instruments, the fair value
could be significantly differant,
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Foreign currency franslation
(a) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in functional currency of the Fund
which is Japanese Yen ("JFY") and are recorded on initial recognition in the
funclional currency at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forgign currencies are
translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Mon-
monetary tems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Mon-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlermemt of monetary items or on translating
monatary items at the and of the reporting period are recognised in profit orloss,

The Fund does not isolate the portion of gains or lasses on invesimeants which is due
ta changes in foreign exchange rates from that which is due fo changes in market
prices of the invesiments. Such fluctuations are included with the net realised and
unrealized gains or losses from investments,

(B Fresentalion of financial statements

For presentation purpose, the assets and liabilities of the Fund are translated into
USD at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporling period and their profit
or loss are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions.
The exchange differences arsing on the translation are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Condensed schedule of invesiments

The industry and geographic classifications of the investments reflected in the accompanying
Condensed Schedule of Investiments are based on the Investment Manaoer's belief as to Lhe
most accurate descriptions as of December 31, 2018,

Taxation

There is currently no taxation imposed on income or capital gains by the Government of the

Cayman |slands. The only taxes payable by the Fund are withholding taxes applicable to
certain investment income.

=10 -
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
2B Taxation {cont’d)

ASC T40, Income Taxes defines how uncertain tax positions should be recognised,
measured, presented and disclosed in the financial statements and reqguires entities to
recognise a tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is "more likely than not" that
the position is sustainable, based solely on its technical merits and considerations of the
relevant taxing authority's widely understood administrative practices and precedents, [fthis
threshold is met, the Fund measures the tax benefit as the largest amount of the benefit that
is greater than fifty percent likely of being realised upon ultimate settlerment. The Fund has
evaluated tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the course of preparing the Fund's
tax returns to detemmine whether the tax positions are more likely than not to be sustained
by the applicable tax authority. Based on this analysis, there was no matenal tax position
deemed to meet a more likely than not threshold. Therefore, no tax expense including any
interests and penalties was recorded in the cument year.

28 Redemption payable

ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity ("ASC 480, requires thal an entity classily
as liahilities any financial instruments in the form of shareholders’ capital that are mandatornily
redeemable on fixed dales for fixed amounts. The labilities to such shareholders are
presented on the statement of assets and liabilities as redemptions payable,

210  Fair value of financial instrumemts

The fairvalue of the Fund's assets and liabilities which qualify as financial instruments under
FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measuremernts and Discloswes ("45C 8207 approximates the
carrying amounts presented in the financial statements.

211  Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Fund does not offset financial assets and financial liabilties across derivative types on
the statement of assets and liabilities as there is no masler netling agreement or similar
agreements. The Fund has presented the statement at gross amounts.,

3. Fair value measurements

Investment transactions are recorded al estimated fair value as defined by ASC 820. The
fair value of an investment is the amount that would be received to sell the investmeants in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date {i.e., the exit price).
ASC 820 establishes a hierarchal disclosure framework which prioritises and ranks the level
of market price observability used in measuring investments at fair value, Market prce
observability is impacted by a number of factors, including the type of investments and the
characteristics specific 1o the investments. Investments with readily available active guoted
prices or for which fair value can be measured from aclively quoted prices generally will have
a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgement used in
measuring fair value.

=11 #
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Fair value measurements (cont'd)

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC 820 and its applicability to the Fund's
invastments are described balow:;

Level 1 - Quoled pricas are available in active markets for identical investiments as al the end
of the reporting period. The types of investments included in Level 1 include listed equities
and listed denvatives. As required by ASC 820, the Fund does not adjust the quoled price
for these investments, even in sifuations where the Fund holds a large position and a sale
could reasonably impact the quoled price.

Level 2 - Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either
directly or indirectly observable as of the end of the reporing period and fair value is
determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies. Investments which
are generally included in this category include corporate bonds and loans, less liquid and
restricted equity securities and certain overthe-counter ("OTC") derivatives.

Lewvel 3 - Pricing inputs are uncbservable for the investments and include situations where
there is little, if any, market activity for the investments. The inputs into the detemmination of
fair value require significant management judgement or estimation. Investments that ane
included In this category generally include investments in privately held companies, general
and limited parinership interest in comporate private equity and real estate funds, funds of
hedge funds and distressed debt.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, In such cases, an investiment's level within the fair value hierarchy is based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurements, The Fund's
assessment of the significance of a paicular input to the fair value measurements in its
entirety requiras a judgement and considers factors specific to the investments,

The following table summarises the valuation of the Fund's investments by the above
ASC 820 fair value hierarchy levels as of December 31, 2018.

Fair value measurements at reporting period

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Toetal
5% ss UsS uss
Assets
Inwestment in securities, at fair value:
Comman stock 15,254 520 - - 15,2684 520
Liabilities
Securities sold, not yel purchased, at
fair value
Commeon stock 12,530,815 - - 12,530,815
Dervative contracts, at fair value
Forward currency cantract - 28,145 - 28,145
Future contracts 28,382 = - 28,382

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Fund invested in Level 1 and Lavel 2
investments, There has been no transfer between Levels 1 and 2 during the year,

oL - o
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Shin-Ka Fund

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Due fromf{to) broker

Due fromi(tlo) broker includes margin depasits on dervative contracts and cash collateral with
the Fund’s piime broker and amounts receivable/payable for securities transactions that have
not settled &t the date of the financial statements. The Fund continuoushy monitors the credit
standing of each broker with whom it conducts business with. As at December 31, 2018, the
due from broker and due to broker balances of US$21,555,063 and USS1,190,538
respactively, represents the receivable and payable balances for securities transactions that
have not been settled, The due from broker also includes cash and other currency balances
amoaunting to U3$21,227 377 is placed with the Fund’s Prime Broker. The due from broker
balances are partially restricted until the Fund satisfies the obligation to deliver the securities
sold, not yet purchased.

Units in issue

Units of the Fund may be issued in different classes. The Trustee has designated nine ()
classas of units, being the USD Class A units, JPY Class A units, USD Class B units, JPY
Class B units, USD Class C units, JPY Class C units, USD Class D units, JPY Class D units,
JPY Class E and JPY Class F. The Trustes may designate further classes in the future
which may be offered on different ferms and different currencies as the Trustee may
delerming. All 8 classes parlicipate in the profit or losses of the Fund and rank par passu
for all purposes, except with respect to the differant management and performance fea,

The units are initially issued at; (1) US%1,000 per unit for USD Class A, USD Class B, UsD
Class C and USD Class D units; (2) JPY 100,000 per unit for JPY Class A and JPY Class B
units; (33 JPY 1 per unit for JPY Class C, JPY Class D and (4) JPY 10,000 per unit for JBY
Class E and JPY Class F units. Additicnal units may be subscribed on the first business day
of each month during the year, or at such other time as determined by the Trustes at the
price equal to the NAV per unit of the respective class as of the last business day of the prior
month, subject to certain adjustments.

However, when units are subscribed for during a period when the NAV per unit is more than
the offering price at the beginning of the year or when there is a loss carmy-forward from a
prior perod, certain equalisation adjustments are made to the amount of money paid forthe
subscription of units. This ensures:

{i) the performance fee paid to the Investmenlt Manager by the Fund is chamed only to
thosa units that have appreciated in value since their acquisition;
(i all unitholders per class will have the same amount per unit at risk; and

(i} all units per class will have the same NAV.

Any equalisation credit or perfformance fee redemplion as defined in the Private Offering
Memarandum ("OM™), outstanding as at the end of the year will become payable to the
unitholders or the Manager, respectively. The equalisation credit will be converted into
additional fully paid units at the end of the financial year while the performance fee
redemptions will be redeemed from the unitholders at the end of the financial year.

All units are redeemable on the first business day of each month, upon 45 days priorwritten
notice, at the MAY per unit of the respective classes of the close of the business on the

preceding business day before the redemption date, after giving effect to certain adjustment
as described in the OM.

= 1
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended Decamber 31, 2018

Participaling unit transactons far the year ended December 31, 2018 ware as follows:

Ush Class & USD Class B USD Class JPY Class & JPYClass B JPY Class & JPY Class D JPY Class E
units umits O unita unita units units units umits
Uirits ourstadng &t begaring of
waar 1,682, 1417 100 D00 14114837 6 BA0GEE3 AEE2 1001 289056 805 262 500,087 19,663
Linits kstned - - - - - - - f§,28°
Urils resdeasmed (41,2247} = LE53352) (1 552 E211) (51710005 (57,100,708} {85,744 548) (3,020
Met eftect of urets equalsstizn = = - = - = = (1%}
LInts outstancing at &nd o vear 15089100 100 D 1, A5 2408 D ST S 31450001 A BabouE 93 0 hI8 22,500
T
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended Decaember 31, 2018

Management and performance feas

The Investment Manager will receive, out of the assets of the Fund, a management fee equal
to: (&) 112 of 1.5% per moanth of the NAV of Class A and Class B units; (b) 112 of 1.9% per
month of the NAWY of Class C units; {c) 1 /12 of 2%per month of the NAW of Class D units; {d)
112 of 2.5% permonth of the MAV of Class E units and (&) 112 of 29 per month of the NAY
of Class F units before deduction of the month's management fee and before making any
deduction for any accrued performance fees as at the last valuation point in each month.
The management fee for the year amounted to US3435 245 of which US$33,008 was
payable to the Investment Manager as at December 31, 2018,

Pursuant to the OM, the Investment Manager is also entitled to receive a performance fee
equal to 20°% of any increass in the NAV per unit with respect to Class A units and Class F
units and 25% of any increase in the NAV per unit with respect to Class B, Class C, Class D
units and Class E units. The performance fee is calculated on a high water mark basis so
that any losses from prior periods must be recouped before a performance fee is eamed.
The performance fee is payable 10 the Investment Manager annually in arrears or upon
redemption of the units. There was no performance fee for the year ended December 31,
2018,

As at December 31, 2018, there is a performance fee redemplion payable of US$H1,158 due
to redemption of units by unitholders.

Derivative contracts

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters inlo derivative contracts for trading
purposes, Typically, derivalive contraclts serve as components of the Fund's invesiment
strategies and are ulilised primarly to structure investmentis to economically match the
investment objectives of the Fund.

The Fund enters into transactions involving derivative financial instruments in connection
with its invesling activiies. These instruments are subject 1o varous risks similar o non-
derivative instruments, including market, credit, liquidity and operational risks. The Fund
meanages these risks on an aggregate basis along with the risks associated with its investing
activities as part of its overall risk management policies, and as such doas not distinguish
derivative profil or loss from any other calegory of investments for income presentation
purposes. The Fund records its trading-related derivative activities on a fair value basis, as
such lhese derivative instruments do not qualily for ASC 815, Derivalives and Hedging.
Accordingly, even though the Fund’s investments in derivative instruments may represent
economic hedges, they are considered to be non-hedge transactions for purposes of
ASC 815 disclosuras

- §5a
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Derivative contracts (cont'd)

Forward contracts are OTC contracts for delayed delivery of currency in which the buyer
agrees (o buy and the seller agrees to deliver a specified currency at a specified price on a
specified date. Because the terms of forward contracts are not standardised, they are not
traded on organised exchanges and generally can be terminaied or closed-out only by the
agreement of both parties 1o the contract. During the year, the forward contract is closed,
realised gain or loss equal to the difference between the proceeds from {or cost of) the close-
out of the contract and the orginal contract price. When the forward contract is open,
changes in the value of the contract are recognised as unrealised gains or losses.

When the forward contract is closed, the Fund records a realised gain or loss equal to the
differances between the proceeds from (or cost of) the close-out of the contract and the
anginal contract price.

Futures contracts entered into the Fund represent firm commitment to buy or sell the
underlying asset at a specified value and point in time based upon the agreed or contracted
quantily. Warnation margins are made or receive by the Fund each day, depending on the
daily fluctuations in the value of the contract and the change is recorded as an unrealised
gain or loss. The ultimate gain or loss is equal to the difference between the value of the
contract at the onset and the value of the contract at settlement date and is included in the
statement of operations,

The Fund is subject to equity price risk in the nommal course of pursuing its investment
objectives. The Fund may use forward contracts and futures contracts to gain exposurs o,
or hedge against, changes in the value of equity securities.

Effects of derivative contracts in the statement of operations for the vear ended
December 31, 2018

Unrealised Realised Total

Primary underlying risk gain/{loss) gain/{loss) gain

LSS Uss LS5
Future contracls 335,319 (284, 474) 70,844
Forward currency contracts (15,502) 118,841 103,339
Equily swaps - 727,589 T27 589
319,817 581,936 901,753

LR
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Derivative contracts (cont'd)
Volume of derivative activity
As at December 21, 2018, the volume of the Fund’s derivative activities based on the notional

amounts and number of contracts when applicable, categorised by pimary underlying risk, is
as follows:

Short exposure
Number of
MNotional contracts/
amaouint quantity
Uss
Equity price
- Index futures 2,424 961 18
- Forward currency contracts 4233774 -

Financial instrumeaints with off-balance sheet and credit risk

In the nomnal course of business, the Fund may trade varous flinancial instrurments and enter
into varous investment activities with off-balance sheet sk, These finandial instruments
include securities sold, not yet purchased and dervative contracts.

Derivative contracts may result in off-balance sheet risk as the Fund's obligations under these
contracis may excead the amounts recognised in the statement of assels and liabilities. The
Fund’s exposure to cradit sk associated with counterparty non-performance on contracts, that
are not exchange traded, is typically limited to the carrying values on the stalement of assets
and liabilities.

Securities sold, not yet purchased represent obligations of the Fund to purchase the security
in the market at prevailing prices to the extent that the Fund does not already have the
securiies in possession.  Accordingly, these transactions result in off-balance sheet risks a5
the Fund's satisfaction of the obligations may exceed the amaount recognised in the statement
of assets and liabilities. The Fund's investments in securilies and amount due from brokers
are parlially restricted until it satisfies the obligation to deliver the investments sold, not yet
purchased.

& g
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

Fosr thee wear ended Dedsrmber 31, 2018

Financial highlights

Financial highlights for the yaar ended Dacember 31, 2008 are as follows:

UE0 Class & LSO Class B USDClass 0 JFY Class o JFY Class B JPY Class C JPY Class D JPY Clhass E
Indtiad series  Inilial series Inflial series Intial series Inttial series Initial series Initial series Imitial series

3% LEE L= JPY By iy »r JFY
Por undt operating porfomance:
Beginning MAY 1,553 024 1,604 518 1.2040.253 130280332 159 6EZ G380 1448024 1306670 10,333 DES000
Pl invsasd i espeense (10 c08) (103 a4y (B0 (81, 775838 (13,C82.591) 2118805] 10887 (1,337 3B2EEE)
Pl b o I neestmer s and foradgn
CUMEnEy TENSIT NG [18.515) {16 2dn A FETI ER R chers 1] (1.BE1.130) Piel iea ok e {00 BEO) [73.551345)
Ercing ke 1,534 S 1,534 530 1107 575 158 530 475 144 T35 87 130607 1477840 B0 G54R00
% % % A kS & & R
Takal relum beafore palrmancs e (.26} 26 [ G0 B 1872 LAY EA L]
Felormence fee
Total relum wher perfo-mance e (.26} [ [Efria) b ] Bl 16.72) |6.810 1R
all Class & AEClass B AliChss 0 Al Class & AllTlass B All Class & All Class D i Glass E
LISD units UED units USD units JPY uniis JPY unis SR units P unils JPY units
Rabixs to average ret assets % % k] L] % & & T
Esponses betors pefamanos oo 17 CLdd) [ L) CIEDD b4 Lyl 12.81) o :m 10am &7
Proriormanos fee - = - - - = - -
Total aypanzas Al parkavani i [ 044 (7045} (068 10 43) 10.41) [ e HaTH)
Hel mveslr A sapmime 551} HE (10 ) ] AN JLACH] 1885 (1ETE

Financial highlights sra celculated for each class of unfis takan as a whole with per unt operating performence disclosed for the lead sefas af each uni.
An indweidual Imeestor's rasults may vary from these results based on different performance fee arrangement and on the tming of cepital trensaction.
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Indemnification

The Fund enters into contracts that contain & wariety of indemnification provisions. The
Fund’s maximum exposure under these arrangements, if any, is unknown. However, the
Fund has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of
loss to be remote.

Mew accounting developments

In August 2018, the FASE issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurements (Topic 820):
Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Velue
Measurerment, to streamling disclosure requireaments and reducs cost for preparers while
continuing to provide useful information for financial statement users. ASU 201813
eliminates disclosures for transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, policy of fiming of transfers,
valuation process for Level 3 fair value measuremenls and for non-public entilies, the
changes in unrealised gains and losses included in earnings for recurring Level 3 fair value
measurements held at the end of the reporling period. The guidance also amends disclosure
requiremeants for the Level 3 roll forward, All other changeas implemented by the ASU are
applicable to public companies only. The guidance is effective for financial statements with
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, The Fund has chosen not 1o early adopt
this change in the Fund's financial staterments and accompanying notes for the year ended
Decamber 31, 2018. The Fund is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that this update will
have on its financial statements.

In Movember 2016, the FASE issued the ASL 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230)
- Restricted Cash: A consensus of the FASE Emerging Issues Task Force, {o improve the
details that entities must provide about their cash holdings. ASU 2018-18 requires cash flow
statements to explain the change during a reporting peried of the totals for cash, cash
equivalents, restricted cash, and restricted cash equivalents. The amounts for restricted
cash and restricted cash equivalents are to be included with cash and cash equivalents if the
cash flow statement includes a reconciliation of the total cash balances for the beginning and
end of the perod. Additional footnote disclosures are also required to explain the nature of
the restricted cash. Mon-public entities are required to apply the ASU for the fiscal year
beginning after December 15, 2018 and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019. Early adoption is also permitted. The Fund has chosen not to early
adopt this change in the Fund's financial statements and accompanying notes for the year
ended December 31, 2018, The Fund is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that this
update will have on its financial slalements.

InJune 2016, FASE issued ASU 20168-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326).
This guidance represents a significant change in the allowance for credit losses accounting

model by requiring immediate recognition of the Fund's estimates of curent expecied credit
losses.

- 10 -
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Shin-Ka Fund

Motes to financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2018

11. MNew accounting developments (cont'd)

The amendments affect entities holding financial assets and net investment in leases that
are not accounted for at fair value through netincome. The amendments affect loans, debt
securities, trade receivables, net investments in leases, off-balance-sheet credit exposures,
reinsurance receivables, and any other financial assels not excluded from the scope Lhat
have the contractual right to receive cash. The amendments in this guidance affect an entity
to vanying degrees depending on the credit quality of the assets held by the entity, their
duration, and how the entity applies current GAAP. There is diversity in practice in applying
the incumed loss methodology, which means that before transition some entities may be
more aligned, under current SAAP, than others to the new measure of expected credit
losses. The guidance is effective for inancial statements issued with iscal years beginning
after December 15, 2020. The Fund did not early adapt this and is currently svaluation the
impact of this guidance, if any on the Fund’s financial statements disclosures.

12. Subsequent events

Subsequent to the year ended Dacamber 31, 2018, there wera US3237 576 subscriptions to
and US%$111,209 redemptions from the Fund both settled on January 2, 2019.

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 28, 2019, which is the date the
finanaial statements were available to be issued.

|
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
As af 31 Decamber 2019

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other current assets

Non-current assets
Loans to related corporation
Property, plant and equipment

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Current income tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Share capital
Retained profits
Total equity

Mote

10
11

12
13

14
2.10
8(b)

19

19

15

2019 2018
5 5

3,567,805 2,859,402
3,886,619 23,360,238
445,344 227 B85
7,899,768 26447323
. 223,898
1,605,555 79,344
1,605,555 a03.242
9,505,323 26,750,565
3,598,911 23,561,764
573,949 -
371,178 204,402
402,889 «
4,946,927 23 766,166
1,161,230 -
6,108,157 23 765,166
3,397,166 2,984 399
887,160 887,160
2,510,006 2,097,239
3,397,166 2,984,399

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

MNote 2019 2018
5 5

Management fees 19,205,573 16488721
Consulting fees 157,429 120,656
Performance fees 478,999 22397073

19,842,001 39,007 450
Less: Advisory fees (4,770,242) (3,290,452

15,071,759 35718998
Other income 4 200,447 82121
Other losses 5 (545,830) {205,319)
Expenses
- Employes compensation (31 (11,234,854) (32372.929)
- Depreciation expense 13 (468,732) (B7,253)
- Other operating expenses Fi (1,691,820) (1,820,621)
- Interest expense 17 (52,136) =
Profit before income tax 1,278,834 1,232 997
Income tax expense 8(a) (216,147) {181,278)
Profit after tax 1,062,687 1,051,718
Other comprehensive income i -
Total comprehensive income 1,062,687 1,051,718

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemerits.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018
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Share Retained Total
MNote capital profits eruity
§ 5 5

2019
Beginning of financial year &a7, 160 2,007 238 2084 399
Total comprehensive income - 1,062,687 1,062,687
Dividends paid 16 - (649,920) {649,920)
End of financial year 887,160 2,510,006 3,397,166
2018
Beginning of financial year B&7 180 1,045 521 1,832 681
Total comprehensive income - 1,051,718 1,051,718
Dividends paid 16 - - -
End of financial year G87,160 2,087,258 2,984 589

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

hote 2019 2018
5 3

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit after tax 1,062,687 1,051,718
Adjustments for;

- Income tax expense 8(a) 216,147 181,279

- Depreciation 13 468,732 &7.253

- Interest income 4 (2,629) (383)

- Interest expense 17 52,136 -

- Loan written off 5 137,910 -

- Met gain on disposal of propery, plant and equipment 4 (60) -

- Provision for unulilised leave 19,713 -

- Unrealised lossfigain) on cash and cash equivalents 108,122 (31,794)

2,062,758 1,268,073

Change in working capital:

- Trade receivables 19,473,617 (11,900,798)

- Other current assets (217,659) (281)

- Trade and other payables (19,982,566) 11,768 269

- Contract liabilities 573,949 -
Cash generated from operations 1,810,098 1,156,283
Income tax paid B(b) (49.371) (122 .414)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,860,728 1,033 869
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to property, plant and 2quipment 13 {44,360) (56,719)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,13 60 -
Repayment of loans to related corporation 85,988 {138,981)
Interest received 2,629 383
Met cash provided by/{used in) investing activities 44,317 {195,317)
Cash flows from financing activities
Principal repayment of lease liabilities (i) 17(d) {386,464) -
Interest paid (i) 17 (d) (52,136) -
Dividends paid (649,920} -
Met cash used in financing activities {1,088,520) -
MNet increase in cash and cash equivalents 816,525 838,562
Cash and cash equivalents
Beqginning of financial year 9 2,859,402 1,989,056
Effects of currency franslation on cash and cash

equivalents _(108,122) 31,794
End of financial year a 3,567,805 2859402
m Reconciiation of liakilties from financing activities

P":"r‘ﬂgaﬁ';"d Mon-cash changes:
paymants Adoption of FRS | Interest axpense
1 Jarwary 20H9 {Moste 17(dy 116 (Mote 17(a)) {Wote 17(a1) 31 December 2010
Lease labities 5 5 5 g 5
5 (438, BO0) 1,850,683 52136 1,564,119
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemerits.
9
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

These nctes form an integral part of and should be read in conmjunction with the
accompanying financial statements.

1. General information

Gordian Capital Singapore Private Limited (the "Company”) is incorporated and
domiciled in Singapore. The address of its registered officeis 135 Cecil Street #05-
02 MYP Plaza, Singapore 065536.

The principal activity of the Company is that of fund management.

On 12 March 2014, the Company received its Capital Markets Services License
from the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS™) under the Securities and Futures
Act (Cap.289).

Gordian Capital had operated as an Exempt Reporting Adviscr with the United
States Securities and Exchange Commission ("SECT) since August 2017, On 11
February 2013, Gordian Capital became a SEC Registerad Investmeant Adviser.

2, Significant accounting policies

21 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS") under the historical cost convention, except
as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of these financial stalements in conformity with FRS reguires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. |t also requiras the use of certain critical accounting estimates
and assumptions. Although these estimates are based on management's best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. There are ne areas invalving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the
financial statements.

Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2019

On 1 January 2018, the Company adopted the new or amended FRS and
Interpretations to FRS (*INT FRS™ that are mandatory for application for the
financial year. Changes to the Company’s accounting policies have been made as
required, in accerdance with the relevant transitional provisions in the respective
FRS and INT FRS.

The adoption of these new or amended FRS and INT FRS did not result in
substantial changes to the Company’s accounting policies and had no material
effact on the amounts reported for the current or prior financial years except for the
adoption of FRS116 Leases.

10
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ehded 31 December 2018

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 Basis of preparation (continued)

Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2019
{continued)

Adoption of FRS 116 Leases

When the Company is the lessea

Prior to the adoption of FRS 116, non-cancellable operating lease payments were
net recognised as liabilities in the balance sheet. These payments were recognised
as rental expenses over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The Company's accounting policy on leases after the adoption of FRS 116 is as
disclosed in Note 2.4.

On initial application of FRS 116, the Company has elected to apply the following
practical expedisnts:

i For all contracts entered into before 1 January 2019 and that were
previously identified as leases under FRS 17 Lease and INT FRS 104
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Leases, the Company has
not reassessed if such contracts contain leases under FRS 118; and

ii) On a lease-by-lease basis, the Company has:

a) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics:

b relied on previous assessments on whether lzases are onerous as an
alternative to performing an impairment review,

c) accounted for operating leases with a remaining leasa term of less than 12
months as at 1 January 2019 as shorl-term leases;

d) excluded initial direct costs in the measurement of the right-of-use ("ROU")
asset at the date of initial application; and

a) used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.

There were no cnarous contracts as at 1 January 2019,

11
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

2 Significant accounting policies {continued)
21 Basis of preparation (continued)

Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2019
{continued)

For leases previously classified as operating leases on 1 January 2019, the
Company has applied the following transition provisions:

il On a lease-by-lease basis, the Company chose to measure its ROU assets
at amaunt equal to lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance
sheet immediately before the date of initial application {i.e. 1 January 2019).

i) Recognised its lease liabilities by discounting the remaining lease payments
as at 1 January 2019 using the incremental borrowing rate for each
individual lease or, if applicable, the incremental borrowing rate for each
portfolio of leases with reascnably similar characteristic.

The deferred tax effect arising from the adoption of FRE 118 on date of transition
does not have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Company.

The effects of adoption of FRS 116 on the Company’s financial statements as at 1
January 2019 are as follows:

Increase

5
Froperty, plant and equipment 1,950,583
Borrowing (Lease liabilities) 1,950,583

An explanation of the differences between the operating lease commitments
previously disclosed in the Company's financial statements as at 31 December
2018 and the lease liabilities recognised in the balance sheet as at 1 January 2019

ara as follows:
5

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 731,000
Less: Discounting effects using weighted average incremental

borrowing rate of 3% per annum (80,385)
Add: Extension options which are reasonably certain to be

exercised 1,299,968
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2018 1,950,583

12
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Revenue recognition

Management fee income are recognised over the period in which the services are
rendered. Management fees are calculated at predatermined rates based upon the
net asset values of the funds managed.

Performance fees are recognised upon satisfaction of contractual obligation in
accordance with the terms of the investment management agreemeants.

External asset management ("EAM”) fees are recognised over the period in which
the services are rendered and are based upon the net asset values of the monies
managed. EAM retrocession fees are calculated at predetermined rates and based
upon actual transactions. EAM performance feas (if any) are recognised upon
satisfaction of contractual cbligations in accordance with the terms of each EAM
Agreement executed with each investor.

Advisory fees and consulting fees are recognised upon satisfaction of contractual
obligation in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
2.3 Employee compensation

Employee benefits are recognised as an expense, unless the cost qualifies to be
capitalised as an asset.

fa) Defined contribution plans
Defined confribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which
the Company pays fixed confributions into separate entities such as the
Central Provident Fund on a mandatory, contractual or veluntary basis. The

Company has no further payment cbligations once the centributions have
been paid.

b} Employee leave entitlement
Employes entittements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services renderad by employees up to the balance sheet date.

2.4 Leases

The accounting policy for leases before 1 January 2019 are as follows:

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease,

13
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ehded 31 December 2018

2.4

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases [continued)
Contingent rents are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when incurred.

The accounting policy for leases after 1 January 2015 are as follows;

When tha Company is the lasses

At the inception of the contract, the Company assesses if the contract contains a
lease. A contract contains a lease if the confract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a pericd of time in exchange for consideration.
Reassessment is only reguired when the terms and conditions of the contract are
changed.

' Right-of-use assets

The Company recognised a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the date
which the underlying asset is available for use. Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost which comprises the initial measurement of lease liabilities
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
and lease incentive received. Any initial direct costs that would not have
been incurred if the lease had not been obtained are added to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use assets,

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line

methaod from the commencemeant date to the earlier of the end of the usaful
life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.

Right-of-use assets (except for those which meets the definiion of an
investment property) are presented within “Property, plant and equipment”.

. Leases liabilities

Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Lease liability shall ke remeasured when;

- There is a change in future lease payments arising from changes in
an index or rate;

- There is a change in the Company's assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension option; or

- There is a modification in the scope or the consideration of the lease
that was not part of the original term.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

2, Significant accounting policies (continued)

24  Leases {continuad)

. Lease liabilities (continued}

Lease liability is remeasured with a comesponding adjustment to the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

. Short-term and low-value leases

The Company has elected to not recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for short-term leases that have leasa terms of 12 months or less
and leases of low value leases. Lease payments relating to these leases are
expensead to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease tarm,

2.5 Income taxes

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance shaet
date.

Deferred income tax is recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their camrying amounts in the financial
statements except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction,

Deferred income tax is measurad at the tax rates that are expectad to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is setfled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date,

Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or expenses in profit
or loss, except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction which is
recognised directly in equity.

The Company accounts for investmeant tax credits (for example, productivity and
innovative credit) similar to accounting for other tax credits where deferred tax asset
is recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credit can be utilised.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognised at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subseguent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already
been recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
when incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-ine methed to allocate their
depreciable amounts over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Usaful lives
Computars 3 years
Leasehold buildings over the lease term
Furniture and fittings 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Renovation 3 years

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depraciation method of property,
plant and equipment are reviewad, and adjustad as appropriate, at each balance
sheset date. The effects of any revision are recognised in the statement of
comprenensive income when the changes arise.

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are tested for impairmant
whenever there is any objective evidence or indication that these assets may be
impaired.

If the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount is recognised
as an impairment loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of this asset is increased to
its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of accumulated
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of impairment loss for an asset is recognised in profit or loss.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
28 Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets under the amortised cost measurement
category.

The classification of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model
for managing the financial assets as well as the contractual terms of the cash flows
of the financial assats.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considerad in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

(i At initial recognition

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensead in profit or loss,

fii) At subsequent measurement

Debt instruments of the Company mainly comprise of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, loans to related corparation and refundable
deposilts that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and are
measured at amortised cost.

A gain or loss on a financial asset that is subseguently measured at
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relaticnship is recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
frem these financial assets are recognised using the effective interest rate
method.

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expecled credit
losses associated with its financial assets carried at amortised cost.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ehded 31 December 2018

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
28 Financial assets (continued)

The accounting for financial assets from 1 January 2019 under FRS 109 are as
follows: (continued)

{ii} At subsequent measurement (continued)

For trade receivables, the Company applied the simplified approach
parmitted by the FRS 109, which requires expected lifetime lossas to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

For loans to related corporation, cash and cash equivalents and refundable
deposits, the general 3 stage approach is applied. Credit loss allowance is
based on 12-month expected cradit loss if there is no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition of the assets. If there is a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, lifetime expected credit loss
will be calculated and recognised.

2.9 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided Lo
the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid, They are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer),

Otherwise, they are prasentad as non-current liabilities, Trade and other payables
are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective intarest methad,

210 Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represent revenue billed in advance prior to the services being
provided at the end of financial year.

The Company recognises a contract liability as it is the Company's obligation to
transfer services to the funds for which an amount of consideration is due from the
funds.

211 Cash and cash eqguivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash

equivalents include cash on hand, deposits with financial institutions which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ehded 31 December 2018

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
212 Currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dellar (*SGD™ ar “87), which
is the functional currency of the Company. Transactions in & currency other than
the functional currency (“foreign currency”) are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Cumrency
exchange differances rasulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at the closing rates at the balanca sheet date are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

All foreign exchange gains and losses impacting the statement of comprehensive
income are presented within 'other losses’.

213 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issuance of new ordinary shares are deducted against the share capital
account.

2.14 Dividends

Dividends to the Company's shareholders are recognised when the dividends are
approved for payment.

215 Government grants

Grants from the government are recoanised at their fair value when there is
regsonaple assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply
with all the attached conditions.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match
them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic
basis. Government grants relating to assets are deducted against tha carrying
amount of the assets,
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
216 Structured entities

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voling or similar rights
ara not the dominant facter in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any
voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant aclivities are
directed by means of contractual arrangements. A structured entity often has some
or all of the following features or attributes: (a) restricted activitiss; (b} a narrow and
well defined cbjactive, such as to provide investment opportunities for investars by
passing on risks and rewards associated with the assets of the structured entity to
investors; (c) insufficient equity to permit the structured entity to finance its activities
without subordinated financial support, and (d) financing in the form of multiple
contractually linked instruments to investors that create concentrations of credit or
other risks.

Interest in funds managed by Company

The Company has determined that the funds that it manages are structured entities,
as a result of the power conveyed through their investment management and other
agreements with the funds which permit the Company to participate in their
investing and operating decisions. The Company's interests in these funds include
the management and performance fees that it earns from them, together with
ownership interests that it holds, if any.

3 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events

that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,

Valuation of lease ligbilities and right-cf-use assets

The application of FRS 118 requires the Company to make estimates and
judgements that affect the valuation of the lease liabilities and the valustion of right-
of-use assets. These include: determining contracts in scope of FRS 1186,
determining the contract term and determining the interest rate used for discounting
of future cash flows,

The lease term determined by the Company generally comprises non-cancellable
pericd of lease contracts and periods covered by an option to extend the lease if
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option. The same term is applied
as economic useful life of right-of-use assets.

The present value of the lease payment is determined using the discount rate
representing the weighted average incremental borrowing rate. The Company has
used relevant historical information and external market indicators to estimate the
discount rate,
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

4, Other income

2019 2018
] 3
Government grants 4,619 18,512
Interest income 2,629 383
Gain on disposal a0 -
Miscallaneous income 193,139 65 226
200,447 82121
5. Other losses
2019 2018
] 3
Met currency exchange losses 407,920 205,319
Loan written off (see note 12) 137,910 -
545,830 205,319
&. Employee compensation
2019 2018
] $
Viages and salaries 10,984,112 32 278 816
Employer's contribution to defined contribution plans 189,416 88,067
Other benefits 61,326 5,046

11,234,854 32 372 929

T. Other operating expenses

2019 2018
§ $
Rental on operating leases - 440,143
Professional fees 278,586 330,148
Travelling and entertainment expenses 524,702 355,113
Compuler support and maintenance 98,897 126,013
Data subscription expensas 204.913 188,453
Office insurance 118,732 93,651
Marketing expenses 5,700 45 144
Other expenses 460,290 337 956

1,691,820 1,920,621
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(@)

Income taxes

Income tax expense

The tax on profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

the Singapore standard rate of income tax as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax calculated at tax rate of 17 % (2018: 17%)

Effects of:
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes
- income not subject to tax
- utilisation of capital allowances
- statutory stepped income exemption
- income tax rebate
- gver pravision of tax in prior year
Tax charge

Reconciliation of tax charge

Current income tax
Over provision in prior year

Movement in current income tax liabilities

Beginning of financial year
Income tax paid

Ower provision in prior year
Tax expense for currant year
End of financial year

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank
Cash on hand

2019 2018
5 5
1,278,834 1,232,997
217,402 209,609
67,014 42,357
- (2,346)
(6,464) (9,454)
(17,425) (25,925)
(15,000) (10,000)
(29,380) (22 922
216,147 181,279
2019 2018
5 L
245,527 204,201
(29,380) (22,922)
216,147 181,278
2019 2018
5 5
204,402 145,537
(49,371) {122,414}
(29,380) (22,922}
245,527 204,201
371,178 204,402
2019 2018
5 3
3,567,305 2,859,102
500 300
3,567,805  2.859.402
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ehded 31 December 2018

10. Trade and other receivables

2019 2018
8 5
IWManagement fee receivables 3,463,032 1,575,688
Ferformance fee receivables 423,587 21,780,550

3,886,619 23 360,236

11. Other current assets
2018 2018
$ $

Deposits 113,057 112,960
Advances 214,958 o
Frepayments 116,258 114,725
Amount due from related party 1,071 -

445,344 227 885

The amount due from related party is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

12.  Loans to related corporation

The Company has extended 2 loans to its related corporations. All outstanding
leans had been either written off or fully repaid with interest as at 31 December
2018

These loans are unsecured and are intended to be long-term source of additional
capital for the related corporations. These loans are denominated in the Japanese
Yen (“JPY" and United States Dollar (“"USD™) and are due in full on 26 October
2021 and 29 November 2021 respectively. The contractual interest rate on the loan
at balance sheet date is 2%.

The loan te parent company in Cayman of $137,910 (see note 5) had been written
off by consensus of a written resolution dated 17 January 2019. In addition, the loan
to Gordian Capital Japan Limited JPY 7million was repaid with interest on 1 February
2018,
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ehded 31 December 2018

13.

14.

15.

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehald

Buildings Furniture: Dffee
Compulers (Mofe 1) amd fttings sguipmert Beoovation .':%a.l

¥ 3 3 ¥ ]

2019
Cost
Beginning of financizal year 318,655 - 79487 93,382 92535 584,459
Adoption of FRS 118

{Mate 2 1) - 1,950,583 - - - 1950583
Additions 29552 - 14 363 - - 44 360
Qisposals (74 875) - {70073 - = (81.8683)
End of firancial year Zrairi 1,550 583 56 845 93 382 92835 2497518
Segimulated deprecialion
Beginning of financial year 2522 - T1.748 88577 az5r1 55115
Depreciation charnge 41,916 417,882 5354 3116 364 458 732
Disposals {74 875} - {7.007) - - (81.883)
End of firancial year 218 751 417 882 70095 31 853 97 GE5 HE1 56
Net book value
End ef fimancial year §4,510 1,532,601 16,755 1689 - 1,605,555
2018
Cost
Beginning of financial year 270855 - T3.374 90575 "2535 527,740
Additions. 47,758 - €.113 2,807 - 5E.719
End of iranclal year 318585 - T4 487 493382 92535 554 459
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of financial year 605 - 688737 80,331 B4.E7H 437 BE2
Depreciation charge 46,155 - S009 8196 Ff-x] GT.253
End of firancial year 252 73 = 71,745 BBSTT 92571 505115
Net book value
End of financial year GG, 424 - 7741 4805 264 78,344

Right-of-use asset under leasing arangements are presented together with the
owned asset of the same class, Details of such leased assets are disclosed in Note
b 8

Trade and other payables

2019 2018
] 3
Trade payables 216,305 440,251
Accruals for operating expenses 3,3521583 23110,733
Provision for unutilised leave 30,453 10,740

3,598,911 23 561,764

Share capital

The Company's share capital comprise 887 180 (2018: 887,180) fully paid-up
ordinary shares with no par value, amounting to a total of $887 180 (2018:
$887,180).
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

16.  Dividends
At the Extraordinary General Meeting on 22 April 2019, a final dividend of
USD480,000 (equivalent to $649 520) was approved. These financial statements
reflected the final dividend paid in respect of the previous financial year, which is
accounted for in shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained profits in the
financial year ended 31 December 2015,

No dividend was recognised for the financial year ended 31 Decamber 2018.

17. Leases - The Company as a lessee

Mature of the Company's leasing activities

Property

The Company leases office space and retail stores for the purpose of back office
operations and sale of consumer goods to retail customers respectively.

(=) Carrying amounts

ROU assets classified within Property, plant and equipment

31 December 1 January

2019 2019
5 $
Leasshaold Building 1,532,601 1,850,583
(k) Depreciation charge during the year
2019
$
Leasehold Building 417,982
(c) Interest expense
2019
$
Interest expense on lease liabilities 52,136

{d) Total cash outflow for all leases in 2019 was $438,600, represanting
$386 464 for principal repayments and $52,138 for interest payments.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

18. Commitments
Operating lease commitments — where the Company is a lessee

The Company leases office premise under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

The future minimum lease payables under non-cancellable cperating leases
contracted for as at 31 December 2018 but not recognised as liabilities, are a3

follows:
2018
5
Mot later than one year 438 800
Between one and five years 292 400
731,000

As disclosed in Mote 2.1, the Company has adopted FES 116 on 1 January 2018,
These payments have been recognised as ROLU assets and lease liahilities on the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2018,

19.  Lease liabilities

2019 2018
] 3
Current
Lease liabilities 402,889 =
Mon-current
Lease liabilities 1,161,230 -
Total lease ligbilities 1,564,119 -
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ehded 31 December 2018

20.  Financial risk management
Financial risk faclors

The Company's activities expose it to market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors is responsible for setting the objectives and underlying
principles of financial risk management for the Company.

The finance personnel measure actual exposuras against the limits set and prepare
regular reports for the review of the management team and the Board of Directors.
The information presented below is based on information received by the
management team.

(a) Market risk
(i Currency nisk

The Company’s business is exposed to the United States Dollar ("USD")
and Japanese Yen ("JPY"). Exposure lo foreign currency risk is monitored
on an ongeing basis to ensure that the net exposure is at an acceptable
level. The Company has not entered into any derivative foreign exchange
contacts for hedging or trading purpose.

The table below summarises the Company's financial assets and liabilities
which are denominated in SGD, USD and JPY:

5GD uso JPY Total
5 3 $ $

As at 31 December 2019
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents TO4, 436 2,838,728 24543 3,567,805
Trade and cther receivables 2,551,563 1,262, 549 42 507 3,886,619
Deposits 113,057 - - 113,057
Amount due from related parly 1,071 - - 1,071

3370127 4,131,275 87,150 7,568,552
Financial liabilities
Trade and cther payables (3,361,826) (94,379) (112,253) (3,568,458)
Laasa liabilties (1,564, 118) - - 11,5684118)

(4,825,848} (04,379) (112,263} (5,132,577
Met currency exposure (1,555.818)  4.036806 45103) 2435975
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

20.  Financial risk management {continued)
(&) Market risk {continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)

5GD usD JPY Tatal
s $ L3 %

As at 31 December 2018

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 541,435 2,158,704 148,263 2,858 402
Trade receivables 102,165 18,298,007  4.800.064 23360236
Deposits 112,960 - - 112,960
Loan to related corporation 071 137,810 84817 223,898

757 831 20,804 621 5 164 244 26,558.493_
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (23,125,928} (331,801) (93,205} (23 551 024)

Met currency exposure [22,366,207) 20272730  5101,039 3005472

At 31 December 2019, if the USD had strengthenediweakenad by 1.0%
{2018 1.49%) against the SGD with all other variables including tax rate
being held constant, the Company's profit after tax for the financial year
would have been $33,506 (2018: $235,569) higher/lower, as a result of
currency translation gainsflosses on the USD-denominated financial
instruments.

At 31 December 2019, if the JPY had strengthened/weakened by 2 4%
{2018 0.8%) against the SGD with all other variables including tax rate
being held constant, the Company's profit after tax for the financial year
would have been $838 (2018: $ 33,871) higher/lower, as a result of currency
translation gains/losses on the JPY-denominated financial instruments.

{ii) Interest rate risk

The Company has insignificant financial assets or liabilities that are exposed
to interest rate risk.

(b)  Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company, The Company’s major classes
of financial assets are hank deposits, trade and other receivables.

For cash and cash equivalents, as at 31 December 2018, the Company's bank
accounts are held by a financial institution with a credit rating of at least AA- (2018:
AA-), as rated by Standard & Poaor's. The cradit rating refars to the long term default
issuer rating of the financial institution. The cash balances are measured on 12-
months expected credit losses and subject to insignificant credit loss.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ehded 31 December 2018

20.  Financial risk management {continued)
(B Credit risk (continued)

For trade receivables, the Company has applied the simpliied approach to
providing for expected credit losses prescribed by FRS 109, which permits the use
of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables,

The Company's cradit risk exposure in relation to trade and other receivables as at
31 December 2019 js $3 886619 (2018 $23,360 238). The Company has
detarmined that there is no loss allowance provision as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
nil} as management does not expect any losses from the non-performance of
counterparties to be significant.

(e) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in setting its
financial obligations as and when they fall due.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and available
funding through its shareheolder as and when required to meel its requirements.

The table below analyses the Company’'s non-derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the balance sheaet

date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
cantractual undiscounted cash flows,

Betwean Betwaen

Less than 1and 2 2and 5
1 year YEArS years
$ $ 5
At 31 December 2019
Trade and other payables 3,568,458 - -
Lease liabilities 402,889 424 625 736,605

3.971.347 424 625 736,605

At 31 December 2018
Trade and other payables 23,551,024 -
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ehded 31 December 2018

20.  Financial risk management {continued)
(d) Capital risk

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Company
will be able fo continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the capital structure,

Management monitors capital based on the Base Capital Requirements required by
Singapore's Securities and Futures (Licensing and Ceonduct of Business)
Regulations, The Company is in compliance with all regulatory capital requirements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2019,

(&)  Fair value measurements

The Company has no financial instruments measured at fair value as at 31
December 2013,

Except for cash and cash equivalents which are classified as Level 1, the
Company's financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value as at 31
December 2019 and 2018 have been classified as Level 2, which include trade

receivables, deposits, loans to related corporation and trade and other payables.
These financial assels and liabilities are carried at amortised cost and their carrying

amounts approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet date,

() Financial instruments by category

The aggregate carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018
$ $
Financial assets at amortised cost 7,568,552 26,556,496
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 5,132,577 23551024
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

21,

22,

Immediate and ultimate holding corporation

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding corporation is Gordian Capital
Limited, incorporated in Cayman Islands.

Related party transactions

In addition to the infarmation disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
following transactions took place betweean the Company and related parties at terms

agreed between the parties:

Senvice fee charged to related parties

2019 2018
] $
Management faes 19,205,573 16489721
Performance fees 478,999 22 397073
Interest income 2,170 -

Service fee charged by related parties

Both sub advisory fees and consulting fees are disclosed in the statement of
comprehensive income within "advisory fees’.

2019 2018
] %
Sub advisory fees 650,860 474 538
Consulting fees 827 437 350,922

Balances with related parties at the balance sheet date are unsecured and
receivable within 12 months from balance sheet date and are disclosed in Notes 10
11, and 12.

Key management personnel compensation

2019 2018
3 $
Directors' fees, bonus and allowances 989,188 1,209 487
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018

23.  Interests in structured entities
The Company’s interasts in structured entities as at financial year end is as follows:

2019 2018
5 b

Amounts due from funds managed by the Company 3,344 531 17 848 005

The Company's maximum exposure to losses related to the funds is represented
by amounts due from the funds as disclosed in the table above.

The Company has intarests in structured entities as a result of contractual
arrangemants arising from its principal activity, the management of assets on behalf
of its clients. These structured entities may include a variety of investment vehicles
including investment funds. These vehicles may be established or domiciled in
onshoere and offshore jurisdictions.

The structured entities are financed by the purchase of redeemable participating
shares or units by investors, depending upen the type of structured entity, which
may include the Company should it invest in the funds that it manages.

The Company eams a management fes from its structured entities, which is
typically based on a percentage of the relevant net asset value and, where
contractually agreed, a performance fze, based on the outperformance of the
returns relative to an agreed benchmark. The objective of the structured entities is
to generate capital appreciation and/or investment income.

The Company has interests in 22 (2018: 24) structured entities as at the end of the
reporting period, arising through its principal activity of management of assets on
behalf of investors. The net asset of the structured entities is approximately $3,721
million (2018: 52,808 million).

24. New or revised accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 Deceamber 2019 repaorting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Company. Thase standards are not expected to have a material
impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.
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GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ehded 31 December 2018

25. Comparatives

VWhere necessary, certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
changes in presentation in current year.

26, Events cccurring after the reporting period

The Company evaluated subsequent events through 23 June 2020, the date the
financial statements were authorised for issue. The following events oaccurred
through that date:

On 13 January 2020, the Company approved the final dividends of 31,000,000 to
parent company at the Extraordinary General Meeting. The dividends were paid out
from the bank on 15 January 2020.

On 10 May 2020, the Company has been awarded the Standard-tier Financial
Sector Incentive Scheme ("FSI") award by the Monetary Authority of Singapore, for
the period effective from 17 February 2020 to 16 February 2024,

Subsequent to 31 December 2018, the COVID-19 outhbreak was declared a
‘pandemic’ by the World Health Organisation. The situation is dynamic with various
cities and countries around the world responding in different ways to address the
outbreak.

IManagement has deemed that this occurrence is a non-adjusting event for the 31
Decembar 2019 accounts. The impact of COVID-18 on the global economy and
financial markets is highly uncertain and is expected to continue to evolve, At this
point in time, the financial impact from this on the Company's results cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. There is no impact to the Company's going
COnNCerm.

27. Authorisation of financial statements
These financial statements were authcrised for issue in accordance with a

resclution of the Board of Directors of Gordian Capital Singapore Private Limited on
23 June 2020.
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2020 100 10,687

2010 16

Intertrust
Portcullis Trust Singapore Ltd
2020 100 76
199806167W

(Nomura International plc)

2020 100
594,493

100
Prudential Regulation Authority(PRA) Financial

Conduct Authority (FCA)
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Teneo Partners

2020 8,450
Teneo Partners 2009 14
2010 2010 2011
2011
2020 10
2020 1,400
2006 12

Teneo Partners
Teneo Partners
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The Trustee
Shin-Ka Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shin-Ka Fund (the “ Fund” ),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the condensed schedule
of investments, as of December 31, 2019, and the related statements of operations, changes
in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsihility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity"s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity®s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Shin-Ka Fund at December 31, 2019, and the results of
its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in

conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young
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The Trustee
Shin-Ka Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shin-Ka Fund (the “ Fund” ),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the condensed schedule
of investments, as of December 31, 2018, and the related statements of operations, changes
in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsihility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity"s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity®s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Shin-Ka Fund at December 31, 2018, and the results of
its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young

March 29, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF GORDIAN CAPITAL SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of Gordian Capital Singapore Private
Limited (the “ Company” ) are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “ Act” ) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore

(* FRSs” ) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as
at 31 December 2019 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

What we have audited
The financial statements of the Company comprise:

the statement of comprehensive income for the financial year ended 31 December 2019;
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

the statement of changes in equity for the financial year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for Opinion
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (* SSAs” ). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities (“ ACRA Code” ) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Directors® Statement but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and
maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition;
and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to

permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain
accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors® responsibilities include overseeing the Company®s financial reporting

process.
Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management"s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor"s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the
Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants

Singapore, 23 June 2020

)
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